T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

North Planning

Committee

Date: TUESDAY, 8 DECEMBER
2015

Time: 6.00 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -

CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH
STREET, UXBRIDGE

uB8 1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Eddie Lavery (Chairman)
John Morgan (Vice-Chairman)
Peter Curling (Labour Lead)
Jem Duducu

Duncan Flynn

Raymond Graham

Carol Melvin

John Morse

John Oswell

Published: Monday, 30 November 2015

Contact: Charles Francis
Tel: 01895 556454
Email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=116&Year=2015

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Travel and parking V/

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at

the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station,

with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a S umé\\

short walk away. Limited parking is available at Pavilions &, gypube and b

the Civic Centre. For details on availability and Shapping -} G S
Centra

how to book a parking space, please contact
Democratic Services. Please enter from the
Council’'s main reception where you will be car gk
directed to the Committee Room. e mm.m.

Muziaming

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is

available for use in the various meeting rooms.

Attending, reporting and filming of meetings

For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode.

Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online.
Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire

Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make
their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more borough residents can speak at a
Planning Committee in support of or against an
application. Petitions must be submitted in
writing to the Council in advance of the meeting.
Where there is a petition opposing a planning
application there is also the right for the
applicant or their agent to address the meeting
for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;
3. If there is a petition(s), the petition
organiser will speak, followed by the

agent/applicant followed by any Ward
Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the

petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1 Apologies for Absence
2  Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting
3  Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

4  To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered
in public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

PART | - Members, Public and Press

ltems are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the
Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page

5 | 82 Duck Hill Road, Northwood | Three storey building with 1-20
Northwood - associated basement to provide 3

39262/APP/2014/4357 X 4-bed self contained supported 58 - 67
living flats with associated parking.

Applications without a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | Holland & Holland Northwood | Extension to existing reception 21-42

Shooting School, building and new underground

Ducks Hill Road, shooting range, including the 68 - 77

Northwood - demolition of the existing pavilion

16568/APP/2015/3140 and garage.




7 | 48 Harlyn Drive, Northwood | Two storey, 5-bed, detached 43 - 56
Pinner - Hills dwelling with habitable basement
4956/APP/2015/3462 space with associated landscaping | 78 - 100
involving demolition of existing
dwelling house.

PART | - Plans for North Planning Committee 57 -100




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 82 DUCKS HILL ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Three storey building with associated basement to provide 3 x 4-bed self
contained supported living flats with associated parking

LBH Ref Nos: 39262/APP/2014/4357

Drawing Nos: 1341/02d
Transport Statement
Arboricultural Report and Method Statemen
Supporting, Design and Access Statement
1341/10D
1341/01
1341/10D
Proposed Ground Floor Plar
Proposed First Floor Plan
Proposed Second Floor Plan
Proposed Basement Plan

Date Plans Received: 10/12/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 04/02/2015
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a three storey building with
additional floor space provided at basement level. The building would provide 3 x 4
bedroom units which would provide supported living flats.

The application site is a roughly quadrilateral 761 square metre plot of land located on the
northwestern side of Ducks Hill Road, Northwood. Contained previously within the site
was a two storey detached dwelling with a hipped roof, which has since been demolished.

The assisted living flats will provide accommodation for predominately young adults within
an age range of 19 - 35 with profound and multiple learning and physical disabilities.

A new vehicular access way would be provided from Manor House Drive to the rear of the
site, making use of the existing turning head to create the access point. Within the site,
four parking spaces are proposed in front of the principal elevation using the original
vehicular access and two parking spaces would be created to the rear. An area of soft
landscaping would be retained within the rear of the site, which could be utilised as
communal amenity space.

The proposed development by reason of its siting, size, scale, bulk, massing, proportions,
form and layout would result in a incongruous and intrusive form of overdevelopment that
would be detrimental to the verdant and residential character, appearance and the visual
amenities of the street scene and the wider area. Further, the proposed provision of 6 car
parking spaces for the number of residents and staff is considered unacceptable and
would result in displacement of parking to the surrounding residential streets.
Furthermore, the development fails to provide acceptable servicing arrangements, parking
for ambulances or cycle storage. The overall bulk of the building is considered to be out of

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 1



character with the surrounding area and would cause harm to the appearance of the
street scene.

The proposal therefore fails to comply with the Councils adopted Policies and Guidance
and refusal is recommended.

2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Refusal - Bulk, scale design

The proposed development by reason of its siting, size, scale, bulk, massing, form,
proportions and layout would result in an incongruous and intrusive form of development
that would be detrimental and detract from the verdant and residential character,
appearance and the visual amenities of the street scene and the wider area.

The excessive scale and bulk of the development, and proposed parking area to the rear
of the site, would result in a scheme dominated by hard surfacing and built form, which
would be uncharacteristic in the context of the site and surrounding area.

Overall, it is considered for the reasons given, that the proposed development would be
contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012), Policies BE13, BE19, BE38 and OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5 and 7.4 of the London
Plan(2015) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Layouts.

2 NON2 Refusal - parking

The proposed development fails to provide sufficient off street parking provision,
ambulance parking, servicing arrangements and cycle storage to meet the needs of the
proposed use. The development would therefore lead to additional on street parking to the
detriment of public and highway safety and is therefore contrary to Policies AM7, AM9 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 2



AM14
BE13
BE15
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24

BE38

H10

HDAS-EXT

NPPF
OE3

H3
OE1

OE7

OES8

R17

HDAS-LAY

LPP 3.17
LPP 3.3
LPP 3.7
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.18
LPP 5.7
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.4

3 159

of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Proposals for hostels or other accommodation for people in need of
care

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008
National Planning Policy Framework

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreatior
leisure and community facilities

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

(2015) Health and social care facilities

(2015) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Large residential developments

(2015) Sustainable drainage

(2015) Construction, excavation and demolition waste

(2015) Renewable energy

(2015) Improving air quality

(2015) Local character

Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies. On the
8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils Local
Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the
old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 3



decisions.
3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is a roughly quadrilateral 761 square metre plot of land located on the
northwestern side of Ducks Hill Road, Northwood. Contained previously within the site was
a two storey detached dwelling with a hipped roof, which has since been demolished.

The topography of the land and surrounding area is sloped, running downhill from
southwest to northeast. The surrounding area largely consists of two storey detached
dwellings, with the exception of the neighbouring site to the northwest, which has been
recently developed into a pair of semi-detached dwellings. Other larger flatted
developments have also been approved and developed in recent years on Ducks Hill Road.
To the rear of the site is Manor House Drive, a relatively new backland development of two
storey detached dwellings in an arts and crafts style. Directly to the rear of the application
site is a turning head in the highway of Manor House Drive, which erodes slightly into the
footprint of the application site.

The application site is located within a Developed Area as designated by the Hillingdon
Local Plan (November 2012). In addition, the site has a PTAL score of 1.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a three storey building with an
additional floor space provided at basement level. The building would provide 3 x 4
bedroom units which would provide supported living flats (Use Class C2).

The assisted living flats would be operated by HSN Care Ltd and will provide
accommodation for predominately young adults within an age range of 19 - 35 with
profound and multiple learning and physical disabilities.

The building would have a maximum width of 12.50 metres by a maximum depth of 18.70
metres and would have three storey gable end features in the principal and rear elevations.
The roof form would consist of sunken crown roofs, set either side of the pitched roofs
above the gable ends. The building would have a maximum height of 10.7 metres above
ground level to the ridge of the pitched roof in the principal elevation.

Each floor would provide four en-suite bathrooms, staff room and a day room with kitchen.
The basement level would provide a staff room, staff shower and toilet facilities, plant
room, store room and a meeting room.

A new vehicular access way would be provided from Manor House Drive to the rear of the
site, making use of the existing turning head to create the access point. Within the site, four
parking spaces are proposed in front of the principal elevation using the original vehicular
access and two parking spaces would be created to the rear. An area of soft landscaping
would be retained within the rear of the site, which could be utilised as communal amenity
space.

The applicant has stated in the application that the proposal would create 24 full time jobs.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 4



39262/A/94/0148 82 Ducks Hill Road Northwood

Erection of a detached double garage

Decision: 24-06-1994 Refused

39262/APP/2012/402 82 Ducks Hill Road Northwood

Demolition of existing detached dwelling (Application for Prior Notification for Demolition)

Decision: 21-08-2012 NFA

39262/APP/2013/2285 82 Ducks Hill Road Northwood

Three storey building to hold 3 x 4-bed self contained supported living flats with associated
parking

Decision: 15-11-2013  Withdrawn

Comment on Relevant Planning History

The planning history for the site is listed above, however of most relevance to the
consideration of this application is application reference: 39262/APP/2013/2285. This
application sought consent for a three storey building to hold 3 x 4-bed self contained
supported living flats with associated parking.

This application was recommended for refusal, however it was withdrawn so that the
applicant could address some of the issues associated with the application. The main
concerns with this application were as follows:

1. The proposed building was considered overly bulky as a result of the three storey height
and depth. The building was therefore considered uncharacteristic in the area;

2. The design and form of the development results in incongruous roof forms, which are
out of keeping in the area;

3. There was concern with regards to the light and outlook to some of the bedrooms, given
that these would be served only by a small window;

4. No off street parking provision for ambulances or servicing arrangements were included
as part of the application.

The applicant has sought to address some of the reasons for refusal with this current
application. Whilst the width and height of the proposed building has remained largely the
same, a revised internal layout has been proposed to try and overcome the concerns with
regards to the internal light levels and outlook. The application has additionally been
accompanied by a daylight report. In relation to the design of the building, some alterations
have been made to the roof of the building to remove the half hip and replace this with a full
hip adjacent to No. 84a. The depth of the building has marginally decreased and
fenestration layout on the rear elevation altered.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 5



The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1
PT1.H1
PT1.EM6

(2012) Built Environment
(2012) Housing Growth
(2012) Flood Risk Management

Part 2 Policies:

AM2

AM7
AM9

AM14
BE13
BE15
BE19
BE20
BE21

BE22

BE23
BE24
BE38

H10
HDAS-EXT

NPPF
OE3
H3
OE1

OE7
OES8

R17

HDAS-LAY

LPP 3.17

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Proposals for hostels or other accommodation for people in need of care

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted December 2008

National Planning Policy Framework
Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures
Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measure:

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

(2015) Health and social care facilities

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 6



LPP 3.3 (2015) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.7 (2015) Large residential developments

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.18 (2015) Construction, excavation and demolition waste
LPP 5.7 (2015) Renewable energy

LPP 7.14 (2015) Improving air quality

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

52 neighbouring properties and the Northwood Residents Association were notified of the proposed
development on 5th March 2015 and a site notice was erected adjacent the site on 27th February
2015.

16 neighbouring residents have objected to the proposed development and a petition with 30
signatures has been received.

The objections can be summarised as the following:

i) Loss of privacy to neighbouring dwellings;

ii) Loss outlook and loss of light to neighbouring dwellings;

iif) Under provision of parking;

iv) Traffic impact & harm to highway safety;

v) Unacceptable access from Manor House Drive;

vi) Overdevelopment of the site;

vii) Harm to character and appearance of the surrounding area;
viii) Creation of commercial development within a residential area;
ix) Increased noise disturbance;

x) Potential Flooding and Drainage issues related to the basement;
xi) Impact to trees

The Northwood Residents Association object to the scheme in terms of impact on street scene,
insufficient amenity space, impact on neighbours, parking and additional traffic.

Case Officer Comments: These above concerns will be considered in the main body of the report.

Concerns were raised relating to impact on house prices, however this iss not a material planning
consideration.

Internal Consultees
Highway comments:

a. Ducks Hill Road is a Borough Main distributor road (A4180) with a 30mph speed limit. Manor
House Drive is a local residential road (approximately 4.5m wide)

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 7



b. Records do not indicate a high incident of traffic accidents in the vicinity of the site and show a
few accidents recorded at the junction with Northgate. The vehicular access to the site has good
visibility and is considered acceptable.

c. The site has poor accessibility by public transport (PTAL 1a), with bus stops on service route 331
located within 100 m from the site.

d. The proposals include provision for six car park spaces, four accessed from Ducks Hill Road and
two from Manor House Drive. This meets LBH standard for car park of 1 space per two residents.
The traffic generation and servicing demands associated with the proposals have been assessed to
be low and considered acceptable. However, given the poor accessibility by public transport, there is
a residual concern regarding the adequacy of car park provision for staff and visitors.

e. The concern regarding car park provision could be mitigated by amending the layout of the
frontage car park to increase the number of parking spaces - by relocating the vehicular crossover
leading to a centrally positioned access forecourt with four perpendicular parking bays to each side.
These parking bays would need to be wider (approximately 3.5m) for vehicles to manoeuvre within a
reduced width of the forecourt access (approximately 5m). As part of this revision, one wider
disabled parking bay (3.6m wide) and 6 cycle parking spaces should be provided.

Please ask the developer to submit a revised plan for the frontage car park and vehicular swept
paths illustrating cars entering and leaving the bays. Pedestrian visibility splays should also be
shown to each side of the vehicular access.

EPU:

No objection to the planning application. Please note the highlighted comments below as informative
(1) INF 20 Control of environmental nuisance from construction work Nuisance from demolition and
construction work is subject to control under the Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Act
1993 and the Environmental Protection Act 1990. You should ensure that the following are complied
with:

(i) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of 0800 and
1800 on Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0800 and 1300 on Saturday. No works should
be carried out on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays;

(ii) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British Standard
5228, and use 'best practicable means' as defined in section 72 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974;
(iii) Measures should be taken to eliminate the release of dust, odors and other emissions caused by
the works that may create a public health nuisance. Guidance on control measures is given in 'The
control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition: best practice guidelines', Greater
London Authority, November 2006; and

(iv) No bonfires that create dark smoke or cause nuisance to local residents should be allowed at
any time.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit to seek prior approval under
Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out the works
other than within the normal working hours set out above, and by means that would minimise
disturbance to adjoining premises. For further information and advice, contact the Environmental
Protection Unit, 3S/02 Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, Middlesex UB8 1UW (tel. 01895 250155

Trees and Landscape comments:
Tree Preservation Order (TPO) / Conservation Area: N/A

Significant trees / other vegetation of merit in terms of Saved Policy BE38 : There are several semi-
mature trees at the north-western end of the site. The proposed tree protection is adequate.

Scope for new planting: This matter can be dealt with by condition.

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 8



Recommendations: A landscape scheme should be submitted that conforms to HDAS guidelines to
retain at least 25% soft landscaping in the front garden. Details of soft and hard landscaping should
also be provided.

Conclusion (in terms of Saved Policy BE38): Acceptable, subject to conditions RES9 parts 1, 2 and
4, RES8 (implementation) and RES10.

Flood Water Management:
The proposed plans for the elevations do not show the full extent of the proposed development
including the proposed basement.

The area is known to have groundwater issues and any proposal for a basement must be supported
by a site investigation as a minimum. This establishes what the potential risk is of the proposed
basement is, and then if risk is identified, a plan demonstrating that this flood risk can be managed
on site with no increased risk to the surrounding area should also be submitted.

Currently without this information | would object to the proposed development, as it could have an
increased flood risk on the surrounding area, and therefore does not comply with requirements to
ensure that the development does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk
Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk
Management of the London Plan (July 2011) and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)
and the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014).

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The applicant has stated on the application form that the proposal is for the creation of 3 x
4 bedroom supported living flats, which falls under Use Class category C2.

With regard to use of the site for residential purposes in the form of Extra-Care housing,
Policies H1 and H2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 seek to encourage new housing with
the emphasis of policy H2 being specific to affordable housing. Paragraph 6.31 of the
supporting text to Policy H2 confirms that:

"Affordable housing achieved across the borough should reflect the distinct needs of
different sections of the community. It should include provision for older people and for
other groups in need of supported housing, specifically people with mental health needs
and people with physical and sensory disabilities or learning difficulties. The council's aim
is to maximise independence and provide self-contained accommodation with appropriate
support.”

London Plan 2015 Policy 3.8 reiterates support for such accommodation confirming that a
wide range of housing types must be made available across London and that local
authorities must ensure "other supported housing needs are identified authoritatively and
co-ordinated action is taken to address them"

NPPF paragraph 50 reaffirms support for a mix of housing to take account of different
groups in the community including (but not limited to) accommodation for families with
children, older people, people with disabilities, service families and people wishing to build
their own homes."

Policy H10 of the Hilingdon Local Plan states proposals for change of use or
redevelopment to provide accommodation for people in need of care (eg. nursing homes,

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

residential care homes or sheltered housing schemes) will normally be expected to:-
(i) be conveniently located for local shops, services and public transport facilities;

(i) comply with the council's car parking standards and have regard to the council's
amenity guidelines as set out in supplementary planning guidance; and

(iii) in respect of sheltered housing schemes, have regard to the recommendations on
design set out in supplementary planning guidance.

Whilst the provision of supported housing is welcomed by the Council, it is important that
the standard of the accommodation provided is adequate and the design of any building is
also appropriate for the character and appearance of its setting. The quality and standard
of design, impact on residents and parking are all important considerations for this
application, and should not be compromised as a result of the desire to provide such
accommodation. There are concerns with regards to all of these aspects which are set out
in the relevant sections of the report.

In relation specifically to the criterion of policy H10, the site has a PTAL score of 1 and is
located 1km (as the crow flies) from the nearest designated retail area of Green Lane
Northwood Town Centre and is not considered to be conveniently located for local shops,
services or public transport facilities. In its current form, the scheme would fail to comply
with Policy H10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Policies.

Density of the proposed development

The proposed development would have a density of 52.5 units per hectare and 197.12
habitable rooms per hectare. Policy 3.4 of the London Plan requires developments within
areas suburban area with PTAL scores of 1 to be within 30-55 units per hectare and 150 -
200 habitable rooms per hectare. Therefore, the development would be in accordance with
this Policy.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is not in a Conservation Area, Area of Special Local Character and is not a Listed
or Locally Listed Building.
Airport safeguarding

There are no airport safeguarding concerns with regards to this development.
Impact on the green belt

The development would be sufficiently distanced from the Green Belt land to the west to
ensure it would not have any adverse impact on the Green Belt.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) states that development will not be permitted if the
layout and appearance fails to harmonise with the existing street scene, whilst Policy BE19
seeks to ensure that new development within residential areas complements or improves
the amenity and character of the area.

Policy 3.5 of the London Plan states that the design of all new housing developments
should enhance the quality of local places, taking into account physical context and local
character and Policy 7.4 states that buildings, should provide a high quality design
response that has regard to the pattern and grain of the existing spaces and streets in

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



orientation, scale, proportion and mass and allows existing buildings and structures that
make a positive contribution to the character of a place to influence the future character of
the area is informed by the surrounding historic environment.

In terms of the layout and siting of the building proposed the predominant character within
this part of Ducks Hill Road is for dwellings set a substantial distance from the front
boundary, to ensure a meaningful frontage is maintained. The proposed building has been
set over 15 metres from the front boundary, which aligns with other properties within the
road. Whilst the siting of the building within the plot is considered acceptable, there are
concerns with regards to the overall size, scale, bulk and massing of the building, and how
this relates to the character of development within the surrounding area.

The proposed development would provide a building with a maximum width of 12.50
metres by a maximum depth of 18.70 metres. When compared to the footprints of the two
adjoining buildings, No.80 Ducks Hill Road which is a two storey residential dwelling and
No.84/a Ducks Hill Road, the footprint is larger than these neighbouring buildings, but not to
an unacceptable extent. However, once the composition of these footprints is reviewed, it
becomes clear that the proposed building is overly bulky and uncharacteristic of the area.
No.80 Ducks Hill Road has a two storey rear extension and single storey rear extension,
with the main section of the building having a depth of 12 metres narrowing to 9.8 metres.
The proposed building is three storeys in height with a depth of more than 4 metres deeper
than this neighbouring property and is uncharacteristic of the overall bulk of the
neighbouring properties. The adjacent building to the north east, No.84/a Ducks Hill Road is
a recent development which has been designed to minimise the overall bulk of the building
via a s-shaped design and pitched roof forms.

Taking into regard the development along Ducks Hill Road, all of the buildings have a
notable stepped front elevation, achieved with a characteristic S or L-shaped building.
Whilst some attempt has been made to achieve this step in the elevation, given the width,
design and depth of the front gable element, this is barely noticeable on the elevations. The
layout and design of the elevations and footprint of this building, therefore fails to respect
the pattern and character of development within the surrounding street scene.

There were concerns within the previous application in respect of the mix of roof forms and
scale of the overall development. This application still proposes a mix of gable, hipped and
flat roof forms, in addition to significant variations in the height of the ridge and eaves of the
building proposed. The result of the roof form and proportions of the building proposed is
one that appears overly vertical, bulky and incongruous in relation to the surrounding
development. The predominant roof forms and design of the buildings within the
surrounding area is largely hipped roof detached dwellings, which retain a traditional
appearance. The overall design approach to this development, fails to harmonise with this
established character.

The unacceptable scale, bulk, massing and design of the building proposed, is further
emphasised by the treatment of the elevations. The siting, size and design of the
fenestration, and location of the dormer windows, appear very ad hoc in their arrangement,
and no consideration has been given to any horizontal/vertical alignment of these elements.
Further, the windows do not respect the hierarchy of the building, with large windows on
the upper elevations, which create a very top heavy appearance and further emphasise the
unacceptable bulk and scale of the development.

The overall design, form, scale, massing and proportions of the building proposed, with the

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



varied roof forms and heights are considered wholly unacceptable in the context of the site
and surrounding area, and to constitute an inappropriate overdevelopment of the site.

It is proposed to utilise the majority of the rear garden area for car parking. The car parking
spaces to the rear will be accessed via Manor House Drive (the suitability of this will be
discussed in detail in later sections of the report), and will result in over half of this rear
garden being covered with hardstanding. Whilst previous applications have not raised any
objection to the creation of this vehicular access from a highways perspective, the addition
of parking in this area is not characteristic of the properties in Ducks Hill Road. All other
properties within this part retain substantial rear gardens and the addition of parking in this
area, is considered out of character with the surrounding development. Further, to reduce
further the amount and opportunity of soft landscaping within the site, detracts from the
verdant character of the surrounding street scene and only further emphasises that this
submission is an overdevelopment of the site.

In its current form, the scheme fails to comply with policies BE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies OE1, BE13, BE19 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved Policies and HDAS ' Residential Layyouts'.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seeks to
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents in a number of ways. The effect of the
siting, bulk and proximity of a new building on the outlook and residential amenity of these
adjoining occupiers are considered under Policy BE20, whilst potential impacts on
daylight/sunlight (Policy BE21) and privacy (Policy BE24) are also assessed.

Paragraph 4.9 of the SPD, the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential
Layouts (July 2006) further advises that all residential developments and amenity spaces
should receive adequate daylight and sunlight and that new development should be
designed to minimise the negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing. Generally,
15m will be the minimum acceptable distance between buildings. Furthermore a minimum
of 21m overlooking distance should be maintained.

Paragraph 4.11 of HDAS Residential Layouts states that the 45° principle will be applied to
new development to ensure the amenity of adjoining occupiers and future occupiers are
protected. Paragraph 4.9 states that a minimum acceptable distance to minimise the
negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing is 15m. Paragraph 4.12 requires a
minimum of 21m distance between facing habitable room windows to prevent overlooking
and loss of privacy. Policy BE21 states that planning permission will not be granted for new
buildings which by reason of their siting, bulk and proximity would result in significant loss
of residential amenity.

The site layout plan submitted in respect of this application is incorrect and depicts the
layout of the previous scheme. Notwithstanding such, the layouts of the two adjoining
properties have been established from their original planning applications to assist the
assessment of the application on these occupants.

No. 80a Ducks Hill Road is located to the north west of the application site and consists of
a single family dwellinghouse. Given the location of these properties on a hill, this property
sits at a lower ground level (approximately 0.8m lower) than the application site. There is
one window at ground level in the side elevation which is understood to serve a study.
Given the nature and size of this room, the relationship to this window is considered
acceptable. Similarly, the windows at first floor level in the side elevation serve bathrooms,

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



and the relationship to these is considered acceptable.

To the rear of No. 80a are windows/doors serving a kitchen/dining area at basement level,
living area at ground floor and bedroom at first floor. The 45 degree line has been applied to
these windows and the proposed building at No. 82 does not encroach this line. The
building would extend approximately 2.8 metres beyond the rear elevation of No. 80a, which
complies with the Councils guidelines. Given the modest projection of the proposed
building beyond No. 80a, a relationship not to dissimilar between other properties within
Ducks Hill Road, and significant glazing and orientation of the windows in the rear of No.
80a, the proposal is not considered to appear unduly overbearing or visually obtrusive to
this occupant. Although a balcony is proposed on the rear elevation at upper floor level, had
the scheme been found acceptable in all other respects, a condition could have been
added to any consent to ensure suitable screening was proposed.

No. 84 Ducks Hill Road is located to the south west of the application site and consists of a
single family dwellinghouse. This property has a large single storey infill extension to the
rear. There are a number of windows in the rear elevation of this property which serve the
kitchen/living area at ground floor level and bedrooms at first floor. The 45 degree line has
been applied to these windows and the proposed building at No. 82 does not encroach this
line.

The proposed building extends beyond the first floor rear elevation of No. 84 by
approximately 38 metres. Given that this dwelling sits at a higher ground level than the
proposed building, the depth of the building proposed is considered acceptable and to not
appear unduly overbearing or visually obtrusive when viewed from this dwelling. One
window is proposed within the side wall at first and second floor level, however this serves
a bathroom on both floors. Had the scheme been found acceptable in all other respects, a
condition would have been added to ensure that this window was obscurely glazed and
non opening. There is a common degree of overlooking which occurs from the upper floor
windows of all properties within this part of Ducks Hill Road, and the relationship between
the application property and its neighbours is no different. Overall, the scheme is
considered acceptable in terms of its impact and is not considered to give rise to
unacceptable levels of overlooking or loss of light to either neighbour.

The development would retain a distance separation of over 35 metres from the front
elevations of the dwellings on Manor House Road, ensuring no significant overlooking
would occur. Therefore, the proposed development would comply with Policies BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

However, Policy H10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan states that proposals for redevelopment
to provide hostels or other accommodation for people in need of care, such as residential
care homes or sheltered housing schemes, should have regard to the amenity guidelines
set out in Supplementary Planning Guidance. Accordingly, due regard must be given to the
Council's Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) on Residential Layouts and
Accessibility in addition to other policy updates.

The Council's SPD on Residential Layouts states that a minimum of 90m2 internal
floorspace should be provided for four bedroom flats. This is reinforced by policy 3.5 of the
London Plan and also by the recently published Housing Standards Policy Transition
Statement (October 2015). The internal floor area of each flat is approximately 140sgm and
accordingly, all of the units would exceed current minimum standards.

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



Policy BE20 states that buildings should be laid out so that adequate daylight and sunlight
can penetrate into and between them and the amenities of existing houses are
safeguarded. Furthermore, Policy 3.5 of the Local Plan (July 2015) requires developments
to be of the highest quality internally and externally.

The side windows would serve en-suite bathrooms, staff rooms and secondary windows to
the day room and would be required to be obscure glazed to protect the privacy of
neighbouring occupiers and the occupiers of the proposed development. Concerns were
raised within the previous application in respect of the light and outlook from some of the
bedrooms proposed.

The internal layout of the building has been revised to move the bedrooms at the rear to a
more central location, so as to allow for larger windows to be provided to these spaces.
The layout of each flat is now considered acceptable and to allow for adequate daylight and
outlook from each of the habitable room windows.

130 square metres of external communal amenity space would be provided to the rear of
the building, which would provide sufficient outdoor amenity space for the future occupiers
of the proposed building, in accordance with Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012).

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

London Plan policy 6.1 seeks to ensure that the need for car use is reduced and Table 6.2
sets out the parking requirements for developments.

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

CAR PARKING

The proposed development would provide 6 off-street parking spaces within the application
site. The Highways Officer has reviewed the proposal and considers this parking provision
as unacceptable. The site would have 12 residents living at the site and at least 12
members of staff on the premises during the day, with this rising to up to 24 staff during
transition times. The site has a PTAL score of 1 and has poor public transport links.
Therefore the provision of 6 parking spaces within the site is considered a substantial
under provision, which would likely result in additional on-street parking within Manor House
Road and Ducks Hill Road. The level of additional parking would prejudice highway safety,
especially on Ducks Hill Road which is a classified highway and a main distributor route.
The use of the rear garden for parking has been discussed elsewhere within this report, but
is considered inappropriate and out of character with the surrounding development. All
parking for the site should be accommodated within the front garden area.

Furthermore, the proposal fails to provide any spaces for ambulances, which will no doubt
be required, or parking spaces for servicing vehicles. Therefore, the proposed development
is considered contrary Policy AM7 & AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

TRAFFIC IMPACT
The Highways Officer has raised no objection to the proposal on the grounds of traffic
generation. The proposed use of the rear access from Manor House Road was discussed

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



7.1

712

713

714

715

at pre-application stage and considered acceptable. The turning head in this neighbouring
road was provided to allow emergency/refuse vehicles to turnaround in Manor House
Road. During the time of the site visit this space was being used as off-street parking, as
there is no restriction against this. Therefore, by allowing the turning head to the used to
create an access, this would result in cars not being able to block access into the site and
would free up the space for its intended purpose of a turning head. Therefore, no objection
is raised to the proposal of a creation of a vehicular access in this instance, given the
existing turning head arrangement in the street. The current proposal would provide only
two parking spaces to the rear, therefore, the number of vehicle movements using Manor
House Road would be limited to an acceptable level. Therefore, the proposed development
is considered to comply with Policy AM2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

CYCLE STORAGE

The development proposes 4 cycle spaces for the site. The adopted Parking Standards
requires the provision of 1 cycle space per 2 staff for a C2 Care Facility use. Given the
poor public transport and lack of parking the under provision of cycle spaces is considered
unacceptable and contrary to Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).
Had the scheme been found acceptable in all other respects, a condition would have been
added to any consent to secure adequate cycle storage within the site boundaries.

Urban design, access and security

Issues relating to the design of the building have been addressed within section 7.0 of the
report.
Disabled access

The proposed unit would provide specialist care accommodation for predominately young
adults within an age range of 19 - 35 with profound and multiple learning and physical
disabilities. The building largely adheres to the relevant Standards and could be secured by
way of a suitable pre-commencement condition, as such, no objection is raised in this
regard.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate.

The application has been submitted with a tree survey and tree protection plan, which is
adequate. The trees within the site are not protected by virtue of a TPO and are not within a
Conservation Area.

The proposed ratio of hardstanding to soft landscaping at the front and rear of the building,
with little additional space to provide anything further is considered unacceptable and
serves to highlight the excessive scale and overdevelopment that this scheme represents.
In its current form, the proposal would have a detrimental impact on the character and
appearance of the surrounding area which is largely verdant and characterised by
substantial and significant landscaping, particularly within the rear gardens.

Sustainable waste management

The application has failed to provide any indication of the storage of waste and recycling
awaiting collection or any details of how this waste could be collected. Therefore, the
impacts on the visual amenities of the surrounding area and traffic impacts during
collection times cannot be accessed and the proposal is considered contrary to Policies

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



7.16

717

718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

BE13, BE20 & AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012). Had the scheme been
found acceptable in all other respects, this information could have formed a planning
condition on any consent.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

The applicant has provided no details over the sustainability of the proposed building.
However, this could be secure by way of a suitable condition in order to ensure the
development would comply with Policies 5.1, 5.2 & 5.3 of the London Plan (July 2015).
Flooding or Drainage Issues

LPP1 Policy EM6 requires development to be directed away from flood zones 2 and 3 in
accordance with the Framework and national guidance. The application site property is
within Flood Zone 1 and would accord with LPP1 Policy EM6, the Framework and national
guidance concerning the location of development vulnerable to flooding.

Policy 5.12 of the London Plan requires development proposals to comply with the flood
risk assessment and management requirements set out in national planning policy which
does refer to potential flood risk associated with rising groundwater.

The proposed development would include the creation of a basement level within the site.
Geotechnical and Hydrological Surveys are often requetsed for such developments
involving basements as a result of increased concerns with groundwater and surface
water ponding associated with these. In this instance given the site levels, location of the
site and basement, and conclusions of Planning Inspectors at appeal on similar sites, it is
considered that geotechnical or hydrological surveys and methods to deal with drainage,
could have been requested by condition had the scheme been found acceptable.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

The proposed development would increase the number of vehicle movements to and from
the site. However, the quantity of vehicle movements, with the six parking spaces as
shown, would not give rise to a level of noise disturbance which would warrant a refusal of
the application. With respect to the impacts of a business in a residential area, such uses
are commonly found in residential areas. The use does retain a largely residential
occupation of the building with assisted living and had the scheme been found acceptable,
conditions could have been added to address any potential noise issues and management
of the building. Therefore, the proposed development is considered to comply with Policy
OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

Comments on Public Consultations

No further comments with regards to public consultation.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to the consideration of this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

None required.
Other Issues

The National Planning Policy Framework requires the Economic, Social and Enviornmental
considerations of each application to be assessed. Whilst the economic benefits of job
creation and the social benefits of additional assisted living units are considered, the level
of weight afforded to these would not outweigh the harm caused by the other issues
addressed in this report.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor
General

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



Not applicable to the consideration of this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed provision of 6 car parking spaces for the number of residents and staff is
considered unacceptable and would result in a significant displacement of parking to the
surrounding residential streets. Furthermore, the development fails to provide acceptable
servicing arrangements, parking for ambulances or cycle storage. The overall bulk, scale,
massing and design of the building is considered to out of character with the surrounding
area and would cause harm to its visual amenities. Overall, the application fails to comply
with the Councils adopted policies and standards.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
HDAS: Residential Layouts

The London Plan 2015

The Mayor's London Housing Supplementary Planning Document
National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Charlotte Goff Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



N

// ///
J 0 X
v , S .
S 95.4[1!/ /,/s’
< A
Twin Oaks L o ) s °

Woodland
Heights

4 .
.

/\\ hite Oak

Oakwood

uf

0

Edgewood

[

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

82 Ducks Hill Road

Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref:
39262/APP/2014/4357

Scale:

1:1,250

Planning Committee:

North Page 19

Date:
December 2015

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

SILLING

LONDON

DON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address HOLLAND & HOLLAND SHOOTING SCHOOL DUCKS HILL ROAD
NORTHWOOD
Development: Extension to existing reception building and new underground shooting range

including the demolition of the existing pavilion and garage.

LBH Ref Nos: 16568/APP/2015/3140

Drawing Nos: Ground Investigation Report reference C1326:
Initial Assessment Bat Survey
Outline Method Statement for Excavated Materic
1227-101
1227-102
1227-110B
1227-111B
1227 DAS.003
1227-112B
1227-113B
1227-114B
1227-115B

Date Plans Received: 18/08/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 18/08/2015
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing corporate
facility building at the Holland & Holland Shooting Grounds, Ducks Hill Road and the
extension of the existing single storey detached reception building at ground level and
basement, to provide a larger corporate facility and rifle range. The existing building is set
within 100 acres of privately owned land, which is classified as Green Belt.

The application site is in use as a shooting ground, which is considered to be an outdoor
sport and open air recreational activity. Therefore, the use of the site is considered an
acceptable use in the Green Belt. The NPPF requires Local Planning Authorities to ensure
that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. 'Very special
circumstances' will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other considerations.

In support of the proposal, the applicant has provided historical data regarding the
business mix of the shooting club. This demonstrates that the majority of their business is
now coming from corporate shooting days, with a weighting of these towards the later end
of the week and weekend. Given the age of the building, the club is struggling to compete
with local competitors who are able to offer fine dining and modern technology to
supplement their events.

The supporting information also provides a breakdown of the layout of the proposed
building and establishes that the club would require a building of this size to continue to
compete in the corporate market. The proposed rifle range would be the only one of its
type in the UK at present, and this will further allow the club to stand out and compete

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



amongst the other shooting schools.

The NPPF requires the economic, social and environmental factors to be considered in
the determination of any application. Given the required need for a well established
business to expand in order to continue to operate, the economic benefits are considered
to provide very special circumstances for the proposed increase in the size of the building.

Two previous applications have been recently been granted consent for large extensions
to the existing buildings on the site. This scheme is smaller than the previous approvals
and alters the orientation of the extensions within the site so as to minimise the removal of
the existing trees and amount of excavation required. Furthermore, the height and bulk of
the building, when taken in context with the size of the site and previous consents, is
considered not to cause unacceptable levels of harm to the surrounding Green Belt.
Therefore, the proposal is considered acceptable and recommended for approval.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 com4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans and supporting documentation:
1227-101; 1227-102; 1227-110B; 1227-111B; 1227-112B; 1227-113B; 1227-114B; 1227-
115B; Flood Risk Assessment; Design and access statement; Initial Assessment Bat
Survey; Holland and Holland Planning Statement; Ground Investigation Report reference
C13262; and Outline Method Statement for Excavated Materialand shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

No importation of material or modification of landforms shall take place other than those
indicated in the approved plans and documentation

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (March 2015).

3 COm7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained
as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policies OL1 and BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



4 COMS8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed;

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and,

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
Policies OL2 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

5 COM9 Landscaping (including refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping,

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.b Hard Surfacing Materials

2.c External Lighting

3. Details of the green roof proposed over the basement

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance
4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.
4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan.

6 COM10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or
shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the
new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position
to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and
species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the
first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations’ and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

7 COM15 Sustainable Water Management

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it incorporates sustainable urban drainage in
accordance with the hierarchy set out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:

i. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and
control the surface water discharged from the site and:

ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including
appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



iv.provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v.provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of
the London Plan (2015) and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012). To be
handled as close to its source as possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable
Drainage of the London Plan (2015), and conserve water supplies in accordance with
Policy 5.15 Water use and supplies of the London Plan (2015).

8 NONSC Carbon Dioxide emission reduction

No development shall take place until a detailed energy assessment has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The detailed assessment shall
demonstrate how the relevant phase will reduce regulated CO2 emissions and include
details and plans of any renewable energy technologies required to meet the emissions
reduction.

REASON
To ensure the development contributes a reduction in regulated CO2 emissions in
accordance with London Plan (March 2015) Policy 5.2.

9 NONSC Use

The development hereby approved shall be used strictly in accordance with the terms of
the application, plans and supporting details and in conjunction with operation of the site
by Holland and Holland as a shooting ground.

REASON: To protect the Green Belt and ensure the building is used in association with
the shooting school and not as a separate planning unit, and to accord with Policy OL1 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2015) and national guidance.

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
LPP 5.1 (2015) Climate Change Mitigation
LPP 5.2 (2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction
LPP 7.16 (2015) Green Belt
LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character
LPP 7.6 (2015) Architecture
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures
OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
OL2 Green Belt -landscaping improvements
OL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings
3

On this decision notice policies from the Council's Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies. On the
7th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils Local
Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the
old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

4 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

5 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



Nuisance from demolition and construction work is subject to control under the Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Act 1993 and the Environmental Protection Act 1990.
You should ensure that the following are complied with:

(i) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
0800 and 1800 on Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0800 and 1300 on
Saturday. No works should be carried out on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays;

(i) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard 5228, and use "best practicable means" as defined in section 72 of the Control
of Pollution Act 1974;

(iii) Measures should be taken to eliminate the release of dust, odors and other emissions
caused by the works that may create a public health nuisance. Guidance on control
measures is given in "The control of dust and emissions from construction and
demolition: best practice guidelines", Greater London Authority, November 2006; and

(iv) No bonfires that create dark smoke or cause nuisance to local residents should be
allowed at any time.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit to seek prior
approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 if you anticipate any
difficulty in carrying out the works other than within the normal working hours set out
above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises. For further
information and advice, contact the Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02 Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge, Middlesex UB8 1UW (tel. 01895 250155).

6 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01
Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

7 133 Tree(s) Protected by a Tree Preservation Order

Within the application site there is a tree that is / there are trees that are subject of a Tree
Preservation Order (TPO). You are advised that no tree that is the subject of a TPO may
be lopped, topped, felled or uprooted without the permission of the Local Planning
Authority. Please contact the Trees and Landscapes Officer, Planning & Community
Services, 3N/02, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW for further advice.

8

You are advised that this permission has been granted on the basis that the primary use
of the site is a as a shooting ground (A Sui Generis Use) and that other activities which
may take place within the building are ancillary to this primary use and the facility should
be operated in an appropriate manner. Should at any point the balance of uses change
such that the primary use of the site is not a shooting ground this could constitute a

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



material change of use and would require the benefit of planning permission.
3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application relates to the Holland and Holland Shooting Grounds off the highway of
Ducks Hill Road. The buildings at the site are situated approximately 350 metres from the
public highway at the end of the private access driveway into the site. The main structures
at the shooting grounds are the larger lodge building and the smaller corporate facility
building, which is the subject of this application.

The existing corporate facility building is a single storey wooden structure with two gable
end, pitched roof sections and a mansard style crown roof towards the rear of the building,
which was an extension added over 10 years ago. Contained within the building is an
entrance room at the front of the building which provides access to the main toilets and a
galley style kitchen area. A larger second dining room is situated to the rear of the building,
which is also accessible from the kitchen. The corporate facility building has a rectangular
shape with an internal floor area of 222 square metres.

The site has a car park with 40 spaces located off the main drive at the site, with further
parking available to the rear and side of the existing corporate facility.

The application site is located within the Green Belt as identified in the policies of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 and is surrounded by open countryside.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks consent for extensions to the existing reception building and a new
underground shooting range.

A single storey extension with basement is proposed to the existing building that extends
from the southern elevation of the existing building. The extension proposed provides new
functions rooms, catering and changing facilities and an indoor shooting range within the
basement. An external plant area is proposed to accommodate the ventilation equipment
for the basement.

During the development stage of approved application 16568/APP/2013/3588, it became
apparent that a number of technical requirements had not been fully understood or
incorporated into the approved design. Modifications to the hard and soft landscaping, site
levels and soil management had also not been fully considered as part of the application.

An application was approved on the 28th October 2015 (ref: 16568/APP/2015/2277) to
address a number of these omissions, however a revised scheme is proposed as part of
this application, which is considered by the architects to meet the application requirements
in a more integrated way and respect the setting and site constraints.

The main differences between this and the previous applications are as follows:

1. The net additional floorspace proposed is approximately 888 sq.m above the existing
floor space. The original scheme (16568/APP/2013/3588) proposed a 966 sg.m increase
and 16568/APP/2015/2277, an increase of 1,042 sg.m. This scheme therefore proposes a
78/154 sq.m decrease in the approved additional floor area proposed for the site;

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



2. The siting of the proposed extensions has altered. The new single storey building now
extends at almost 90 degrees to the west of the existing building, whereas the two
approved schemes detailed an extension, extending south, adjacent to the existing building

3. The depth of the basement has increased by approximately 1 metre beyond application
2013/3588, and the same as proposed and approved within application 2015/2277, which
equates to a larger volume being proposed below ground.

4. The proposed extension above ground is still single storey and the overall height varies
between 5.7 - 5.9 metres. Application 2013/3688 was approved at approximately 5.3
metres in height above ground, however, it was realised that this scheme could not be
constructed at this height as a result of the ground levels. This application was therefore
amended to accommodate the site levels and the height approved between 5.3 - 6 metres.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

16568/APP/2000/965 Holland & Holland Shooting School Ducks Hill Road Northwood
ERECTION OF EXTENSION TO SINGLE STOREY PAVILION

Decision: 12-07-2000 Approved

16568/APP/2012/1423 Holland And Holland Shooting Ground Ducks Hill Road Ruislip

Single storey building for use as a corporate facility involving demolition of existing building

Decision: 11-12-2012  Approved

16568/APP/2013/3588  Holland & Holland Shooting School Ducks Hill Road Northwood

SINGLE STOREY GROUND FLOOR EXTENSION TO THE LODGE AND CONSTRUCTION Of
BASEMENT

Decision: 30-10-2014  Approved

16568/APP/2015/2277 Holland & Holland Shooting School Ducks Hill Road Northwood

Variation of Condition 2 (Approved drawings) of planning application 16568/APP/2013/3588 (Sin:
storey ground floor extension to the lodge and construction of basement) to allow for a variation |
the finished floor levels, increase in the ridge height of the building, increase in the size and dept
of the basement, retention of spoil on site and associated internal alterations.

Decision:

16568/W/92/1924 Holland & Holland Shooting School Ducks Hill Road Northwood

Erection of single-storey extensions to infill a verandah and form an entrance lobby and alteratiol

Decision: 21-01-1993  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Planning application 16568/APP/2015/2277 was considered by committee members at the
28th October planning committee, and members resolved to grant permission for
alterations to allow for enlargements to the extensions approved under application

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



16568/APP/2013/3588.

Planning permission was approved under application reference 16568/APP/2013/3588 for
a single storey ground floor extension to the Lodge and construction of a basement.

Planning permission was approved under application reference 16568/APP/2012/1423 for
the erection of a single storey building for use as a corporate facility involving demolition of
existing building. This scheme was not implemented on the site however approved a new
building with an internal floor area of 637 square metres, a 2.37 fold increase in the floor
area beyond the existing.

Planning permission was approved under application reference 16568/APP/2000/965 for
the erection of an extension to the corporate facility. The extension has been added to the
building and is the large dining room area to the rear of the building, which is viewed from
the outside as the crown roof section of the property. This extension added approximately
100% to the footprint of the original pavilion building.

The Lodge building at the site was erected following the approval of planning permission
under application reference 16568/E/80/0613 on 9 July 1980.

Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1

Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

Part 2 Policies:

AM13

AM14
AM7
BE13
BE15
BE19
BE20
BE21
BE24
BE38

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people wit
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(ii) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015

PART 1

- MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 30



and landscaping in development proposals.

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

LPP 5.1 (2015) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.2 (2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 7.16 (2015) Green Belt

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

LPP 7.6 (2015) Architecture

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measure:

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

ou Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

oL2 Green Belt -landscaping improvements

OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 13th October 2015

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Site notices were erected on the public highway to provide notice of the development. No
consultation responses have been received from any neighbouring occupier.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY
No comments on the application.

Internal Consultees

TREES AND LANDSCAPE
The 100 acre site is occupied by a shooting ground with ancillary buildings at the end of a 350 metre
long driveway, off Ducks Hill Road.

The grounds are characterised by a well-maintained, manicured landscape of close-mown lawns
and ornamental tree planting associated with the main visitor facilities, set within a wider context of
undulating rural farmland with wooded copses and field hedgerows.

The shooting school is relatively secluded and well screened from view, partly by virtue of its
distance from Ducks Hill Road and partly due to the local land form and vegetation in the form of
woodlands, shelter belts and hedgerows.

The site lies within part of a wider area described in Hillingdon's Landscape Character Assessment.
The Character Assessment identifies the landscape characteristics of this area and the visual
sensitivities are evaluated as part of Landscape Character Area D1 'Harefield Wooded Undulating

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



Farmland'.

The proposal is to extend the existing reception building and provide a new underground shooting
range. (The application is an amended scheme following approval of a previous application ref.
2013/3588).

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS:

According to the Existing Site Plan, McDonald drawing No. 1227-101 Rev B, one significant tree to
the west of the existing building (and proposed building) will be removed to facilitate the
development. This tree is situated at the end of large group of trees and its removal, if unavoidable,
is acceptable. Otherwise, the only other vegetation removal is insignificant.

The Design & Access Statement sets out no particular landscape objectives for the site, although it
confirms that new hard and soft landscaping will form part of the development package.

The proposed building is indicated on plan to extend from the existing Lodge/reception building on a
north-east/south-west axis, towards the belt of tree planting. Car parking and circulation space is to
be provided to the south of the new building. A large 'temporary car park has already been installed
on the south side of the driveway to the east of the boundary ditch and line of trees.

No landscape details have been submitted at this stage. However, the McDonald drawings indicate
that the most important trees and groups of trees around this part of the site can and will be
retained, subject to appropriate protection during the demolition, excavation and construction
process.

Significant volumes of excavated soil and sub-soil will be inevitable. It is not clear whether the
intention is to remove all arisings from the site, or to accommodate them within the grounds?

Re-usable topsoil is a dynamic and fragile material which should be excavated, handled, stored and
spread in an appropriate manner to ensure that it retains its quality for re-use in the landscape.
Subsoil is also valuable and should be stored and handled separately. The handling and storage of
topsoil and subsoil should adhere to current good practice, in accordance with British Standard
3882:2007 and DEFRA's Construction Code of Practice for the Sustainable Use of Soils on
Construction Sites.

If any material is to be re-used/accommodated on the site, a method statement for soil handling and
storage will be required together with landscape plans identifying how and where the material will be
deposited.

Details of the site compound and soil storage areas should be submitted by way of a method
statement to ensure that there is no encroachment on the root protection areas of nearby trees.

If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to ensure
that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding
natural and built environment.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

No objection, subject to the above considerations and conditions COM6, COM7, COM8, COM9
(parts 1,2,3,4,5,6), COM10. A Method Statement is also required to ensure that the topsoil and
subsoil is handled, stored and re-used, or disposed of, appropriately.

FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT
No Flood Risk Assessment or information relating to the management of water has been submitted
with this application

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



However as this is an alternative scheme and previously information was submitted within the
Hydrological report which was useful detail in determining the impact of the proposed development
and basement on groundwater issues and provides sufficient information to demonstrate that
groundwater can be managed within the site sufficiently and that surface water will be managed on
the site.

Therefore the following condition is requested:

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly
demonstrate how it incorporates sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set
out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:

i. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and control the
surface water discharged from the site and:

ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of arrangements
to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including appropriate details of
Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water
through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the development.
Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance with these
details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not increase the
risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1-
Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the London Plan (March 2015)
and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and the Planning Practice Guidance (March
2014). To be handled as close to its source as possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable
Drainage of the London Plan (March 2015), and conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy
5.15 Water use and supplies of the London Plan (March 2015).

HIGHWAYS
In transport terms, the revised scheme is not considered to have impacts in addition to the approved
scheme under application ref. 16568/APP/2013/3588.

Consequently, there is no objection raised from the highways viewpoint.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Policy EM2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) states
that any proposals for development in Green Belt will be assessed against national and
London Plan policies, including the very special circumstances test.

Policy OL1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 defines the types of development considered
acceptable within the Green Belt. These are predominantly open land uses including
agriculture, horticulture, forestry, nature conservation, open air recreational activities and
cemeteries. It states that planning permission will not be granted for new buildings or
changes of use of existing land or buildings which do not fall within these uses.

Policy OL2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 states that, where development proposals
are acceptable within the Green Belt, in accordance with Policy OL1, the Local Planning

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



Authority will seek comprehensive landscaping improvements to enhance the visual
amenity of the Green Belt.

London Plan policy 7.16 reaffirms that the strongest protection should be given to London's
Green Belt, in accordance with national guidance, and emphasises that inappropriate
development should be refused, except in very special circumstances.

The NPPF reiterates that inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green
Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances. It states that:

'When considering any planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that
substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. 'Very special circumstances' will
not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and
any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other considerations. A Local Authority should
regard the construction of new buildings as inappropriate in Green Belt. Exceptions to this
are:

i) buildings for agriculture and forestry.

ii) provision of appropriate facilities for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation and for
cemeteries.

iii) the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate
additions and above the size of the original dwelling.

iv) the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not
materially larger that the one it replaces.’

The NPPF also states that a presumption in favour of sustainable economic development
is a golden thread running through all planning determinations, with the three dimensions to
sustainable economic development being considered as the economic, environmental and
social aspects of any planning proposal.

The key considerations in determining this application are; any harm to the green belt
which may arise from the proposal, the economic benefit to the Borough of the expansion
of this business, and if the economic benefits from the proposal are considered as very
special circumstance for an increase in the size of the building being proposed.

The application site is in use as a shooting ground, which is considered to be an outdoor
sport and open air recreational activity. Therefore, the use of the site is considered an
acceptable use in the Green Belt.

The applicant has provided statistical data which clearly demonstrates that the business
mix of the shooting club has evolved over the years, with the majority of their business now
coming from corporate shooting days. They have also stated that without the corporate
hospitality business, the Holland & Holland Shooting Club would struggle to continue to
operate.

Outlined within the additional information are the economic benefits provided by the club
within the Borough, with 12 full time staff and 30 part time staff at the site. The proposed
development would also provide an addition 3 full time positions and 1 part time position.
Further to this, at the applicant's best estimates, the benefit to the local economy would be
in excess of £400,000, with Holland & Holland bringing 10,000 or more clients into the
surrounding area.

It is important to balance the impact of the proposal on the Green Belt against the benefits

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



of the scheme. The applicant has applied to develop the new building and rifle range in
order to bring Holland & Holland's corporate offering in line with surrounding shooting clubs,
namely EJ Churchill, West London and Royal Berkshire, which offer modern facilities such
as meeting rooms, fine dining and wi-fi internet connection.

The evidence provided demonstrates that corporate days are now weighed towards the
back end of the week, with a reduction in the spread across the week which was seen prior
to the recession. The existing building is unsuitable for use by multiple shooting groups and
the capacity of the building requires the applicant to hire a marquee on up to 20 occasions
a year, in order to meet the capacity requirements of some clients.

The proposed development would result in a substantial increase in the external footprint of
the building. However, an increase of this size has been justified in the supporting
evidence, by clearly establishing the need for a dining area to accommodate at least 120
guests (this can be made smaller for the more typical medium and multiple smaller
events), a meeting room, lecture theatre and enlarged kitchen all of which are considered
to be reasonably required in order for the continued successful operation of the business.

In terms of the rifle range, over the last 20 years, there has been a huge increase in the
interest in rifle shooting in the UK. Holland and Holland currently have a single lane, 100
yard outdoor rifle range, however the use of this is weather dependant and the facility is
shared with the Factory testing of rifles. This makes it unavailable for a large proportion of
time during the week for lessons and corporate events. An indoor rifle range would be a
useful facility for the club and will be the only one of its type in the UK at present, giving
them a future proof facility.

An substantial enlargement to the existing building has already been approved as part of
applications 16568/APP/2013/3588 and 16568/APP/2015/2277 with the total floor area of
the extensions equating to approximately 966 sq.m and 1042 sq.m in each application. The
total floor area of the proposed extensions to the building within this application equate to
only 887.5 sq.m, which represents a 78sq.m and 155sq.m decrease in the floor area
proposed over the original approvals.

The building itself would be set over 380 metres back from the highway of Ducks Hill Road
and is well screened by tree lines to south and east, both of which ensure that the
proposed building would not be visible from the public domain. The new design ensures
that the amount of excavation within the landscape is minimised and the existing design
rationalised with a different orientation, allowing the most to be made of the surrounding
landscape.

The applicant takes seriously the maintenance of their land and have embarked on a
programme of conservation and improvement over the last 84 years, including creating
wildlife ponds, a tree planting programme to improve the feed and shelter available to birds
and animals and the creation of wildflower areas. This scheme has developed the hard and
soft landscaping proposed for the site further, trying to minimise further the amount of new
hardstanding proposed and maintain the quality of the soft landscape of the site. The
revised footprint of the basement requires less excavation of the surrounding landscape
and removal of fewer trees, which is welcomed in the context of this Green Belt setting.

Furthermore, the materials to be used will be conditioned to ensure the building best blends
into the Green Belt surroundings.

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The fact the applicant has such a long track record of managing over 100 acres of Green
Belt land weighs in favour of allowing a proposal which in part helps secure the continued
management of this land for recreational purposes. Overall, it is not considered that this
revised scheme, which alters the orientation and reducing the size of the extensions
proposed, would have a detrimental impact on the openness of the Green Belt.
Accordingly, the proposal does not represent inappropriate development in the Green Belt.

In conclusion, the NPPF requires the economic, social and environmental factors to be
considered in the determination of any application. Given the required need for a well
established business to expand in order to continue to operate, the economic benefits,
when linked with the continued management over 100 acres of land for recreational
purposes, are considered to provide very special circumstances for the proposed increase
in the size of the building. Furthermore, the height and bulk of the building, when taken in
context with the size of the site and previous approvals, is considered not to cause
unacceptable harm to the surrounding Green Belt. Therefore, the proposal is considered
acceptable in principle and in accordance with Policies OL1 and OL2 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan Part Two Saved Policies, Policy 7.16 of the London Plan (March 2015) and the
NPPF.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

The application site is sufficiently located from any airport to ensure the development would
cause no harm in terms of airport safeguarding.
Impact on the green belt

The impact on the Green Belt is discussed under the 'Principle of the Development' section
of this report.

The NPPF requires the economic, social and environmental factors to be considered in the
determination of any application. Given the required need for a well established business to
expand in order to continue to operate, the economic benefits are considered to provide
very special circumstances for the proposed increase in the size of the building.
Furthermore, the height and bulk of the building, when taken in context with the size of the
site, is considered not to cause unacceptable harm to the surrounding Green Belt.
Therefore, the proposal is considered acceptable in principle and in accordance with
Policies OL1 and OL2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two Saved Policies, Policy 7.16 of
the London Plan (March 2015) and the NPPF.

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The existing building is located within the Green Belt, with the surrounding area
characterised by open countryside. The replacement building proposed at the site has
been design to have a low pitched roof which keeps the building to the same height as the
existing. This is currently well screened and not visible from the public domain.

The previous applications on the site for extensions to the existing building, consented a
much larger scheme in respect of its footprint, and overall height above ground level. This
proposed application seeks consent for extensions in the form of an additional single storey
building. However given that the technical requirements of the building and site levels are
now understood in much more detail, this scheme proposes to orientate the extension
differently. The proposed orientation which will see most of the building and additional

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



rooms facing north, requires the removal of fewer trees and requires less excavation.
Whilst the built form proposed above ground does now extend further into the site than
previously proposed, given the modest scale of the building, the overall size of the
development decreasing and appropriate landscaping proposed around the site, it is not
considered that the proposal would have a detrimental impact on the character and
appearance of the surrounding area.

Therefore, subject to landscaping and materials conditions, the proposal is considered to
have an acceptable impact on the character of the surrounding area, in accordance with
Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two - Saved Policies (November
2012).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The proposed corporate facility is located over 500 metres from the nearest neighbouring
building. Therefore, the single storey building and basement is considered to have an
acceptable impact on the residential amenity of any neighbouring occupier in terms of loss
of light, loss of outlook, sense of dominance or loss of privacy. Therefore, the development
is considered to comply with Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan
Part Two - Saved Policies.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The application site has a sizeable car park located off the main driveway to the east of the
buildings at the site, with further parking available behind the existing corporate facility.

The parking areas have been considered further within the site and provide 40 car parking
spaces 5 disabled spaces and 8 electric charging points (4 passive and 4 active) within the
site. The proposed parking is considered sufficient to service the proposed enlarged
corporate facility and the existing parking requirements for the site. Therefore, the
application is considered to comply with Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two
- Saved Policies.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

The development is located within an enclosed site within the Green Belt, which would not
be visible from the public domain. The materials proposed are similar to the two previous
schemes, with the addition of brick and timber for the elevations and slate for the roof, to
which no objection was previously raised.

The overall design approach is considered acceptable in the context of the site and to not
have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area.
7.12 Disabled access

The plans submitted have made provisions for disabled access and are considered
acceptable.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate. The existing building is set within an area of tarmac car park which wraps
around the building. Some ornamental shrubs and one or two small trees (to the west of
the building) will be lost due to the development. However, no trees of merit, or other
significant landscape features will be affected by the proposed footprint of the building.

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



According to the Existing Site Plan, McDonald drawing No. 1227-101 Rev B, one significant
tree to the west of the existing building (and proposed building) will be removed to facilitate
the development. This tree is situated at the end of large group of trees and its removal, if
unavoidable, is acceptable.

The Design & Access Statement sets out no particular landscape objectives for the site,
although it confirms that new hard and soft landscaping will form part of the development
package.

No landscape details have been submitted at this stage. However, the McDonald drawings
indicate that the most important trees and groups of trees around this part of the site can
and will be retained, subject to appropriate protection during the demolition, excavation and
construction process.

Significant volumes of excavated soil and sub-soil will be inevitable as a result of the
development. The application has been accompanied by a method statement setting out
how the subsoils from the excavation of the basement and foundations will be carefully
redistributed to adjacent land. An area of topsoil to the south of the application site has
been identified to be stripped back and the excavated material from the basement
proposed to be transported and evenly distributed over this area. Once all excavated
material has been evenly redistributed over the area, the existing topsoil will be replaced
and re-seeded in strict accordance with the DEFRA Code of Practice. The method
statement submitted is being reviewed by the Councils Landscape Officer and once
comments are received on this document, these will be update in the addendum.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

The waste collection and disposal methods at the site would not be altered from the
existing arrangements. Therefore, no objection is raised on waste collection grounds.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Sustainability policy is now set out in the London Plan (2015), at Policy 5.2. This policy
requires development proposals to be designed in

accordance with the LP energy hierarchy, and should meet the following minimum targets
for carbon dioxide emissions reduction: Year Improvement on 2013 Building Regulations:
2014 - 2016 35 per cent.

No information has been received relating to renewable energy/sustainability and a
condition is recommended requiring an energy efficient report showing how the Mayors
Energy Hierarchy will be integrated into the development, including a full assessment of the
site's energy demand and carbon dioxide emissions.

717 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The application site is outside of Flood Zones 2 and 3. No Flood Risk Assessment or
information relating to the management of water has been submitted with this application

However as this is an alternative scheme and previously information was submitted within
the Hydrological report which was useful detail in determining the impact of the proposed
development and basement on groundwater issues, no objection is raised in this regard.
The previous information submitted provides sufficient information to demonstrate that
groundwater can be managed within the site sufficiently and that surface water will be
managed on the site.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

The site is set sufficiently far from neighbours to ensure residential amenity would not be
affected.

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



719

7.20

7.21

7.22

Comments on Public Consultations

None received.
Planning obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

No other issues for comment.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
None received.

10. CONCLUSION

The NPPF requires the economic, social and environmental factors to be considered in the
determination of any application. Given the required need for a well established business to
expand in order to continue to operate, the economic benefits, set alongside the applicant's
long track record of successfully managing over 100 acres of Green Belt and this
management of 100 acres will be on-going, this weighs in favour of allowing a proposal
which in part helps secure the continued management of the land for recreational purposes
(a use appropriate for a Green Belt location).

The information and documents submitted are considered to provide very special
circumstances for the proposed increase in the size of the building and business.
Furthermore, the height and bulk of the building, when taken in context with the size of the
site and previous consents, is considered not to cause unacceptable harm to the
openness of the surrounding Green Belt. Therefore, the proposal is considered acceptable
in principle and in accordance with Policies OL1 and OL2 of the adopted UDP (Saved
Policies September 2012), Policy 7.16 of the London Plan (March 2015) and the NPPF.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012).
Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two - Saved Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (March 2015).

National Planning Policy Framework.

Contact Officer: Charlotte Goff Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



S AT e
‘Deadman’s. .= 2
| Grove "

/ Highbones, .,
/ i
/

;

k
", /

Raveners
Spring

o]

lssues

?‘Qm’ 28

Duck's Hill

iR SN S
STy /\ 2
= Aagny -

Youngwood
Farm

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address: Holland & Holland
Shooting School
Ducks Hill Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Northwood
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
16568/APP/2015/3140 1:6,000
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 41 |December 2015

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 48 HARLYN DRIVE PINNER

Development: Two storey, 5-bed, detached dwelling with habitable basement space with
associated landscaping involving demolition of existing dwelling house

LBH Ref Nos: 4956/APP/2015/3462

Drawing Nos: 111-PL-01 Rev A
111-PL-09
111-0S
111-DM-00
111-DM-01
111-DM-02
111-DM-03
111-DM-04
111-EX-00
111-EX-01
111-EX-02
111-EX-03
111-EX-04
111-PL-00
111-PL-06
111-PL-08
111-PL-05
111-PL-02
111-PL-03
111-PL-04
111-PL-07
Design & Access Statement

Date Plans Received: 15/09/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 15/09/2015
Date Application Valid: 30/09/2015 30/09/2015

1. SUMMARY

The property is located within the 'Developed Area' as identified in the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) therefore the principle of residential
development of the site is considered acceptable subject to compliance with all other
policy objectives. This proposal considers the demolition of the existing dwelling and the
erection of a two storey building, with habitable basement providing a 5 bed detached
dwelling.

The proposed design of the replacement dwelling, including the large crown roof presents
a bulky and incongruous addition to the street scene. The proposed crown roof form
would represent a substantial increase in scale and massing of the roof, with an increase
in the front and side profiles, and a shallow pitch which would be clearly visible from the
street and reflect neither the design of the adjacent chalet bungalows or the traditional two
storey properties near by. It is therefore considered that the proposal would be an
incongruous addition to the wider street scene and fails to complement the character of
the surrounding area. contrary to the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) and the London Plan

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



(March 2015).

Further, there is inadequate information to demonstrate that the proposal will be safe and
not increase flood risk to the surrounding area. The proposed would therefore be the
development is therefore also contrary to Policy: EM6 Flood Risk Management in
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy OES8 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policy 5.12 Flood Risk
Management of the London Plan (March 2015) and the National Planning Policy
Framework 2012.

2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development by reason of its size, scale, bulk and design incorporating a
large crown roof, would be out of character with the existing and adjoining properties and
detrimental to the visual amenities of the area. The proposal would thus be contrary to
Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012),
Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The application fails to demonstrate that the development will be safe and not increase
flood risk to the surrounding area. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy EM6 Flood
Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy
OES8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the London Plan (March 2015) and the National
Planning Policy Framework 2012.

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

2 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,

Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

4

You are advised that this development, had it been granted consent, would be liable for
payments under the community infrastructure levy unless the development is subject to
an exemption which would need to be evidenced.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the south west side of Harlyn Drive and comprises a two
storey detached house with exaggerated roof eaves and a part first floor side extension on
both sides of the rear section of the roofslope. It has a good sized front garden with parking
provision for at least 2 cars and a good sized rear garden. To the north west lies 46 Harlyn
Drive, an identical house to that of the application property with a first floor side addition set
within the roofslope facing 44 Harlyn Drive and an attached garage along the side boundary
with the application site. To the south east lies 50 Harlyn Drive, also an identical house to
the application property but with a first floor side extension set within the roof slope facing
the application property and a side dormer facing 52 Harlyn Drive.

The street scene is residential in character and appearance comprising two storey
detached houses, some similar to that of the application property, and semi-detached
bungalows.

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is to demolish the existing two storey dwelling and replace it with a two
storey, detached dwelling with a basement and associated parking and amenity space.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

4956/APP/2010/2145 48 Harlyn Drive Pinner

Two storey side/rear extension with alterations to existing side elevation.

Decision: 09-11-2010 Refused

4956/APP/2015/2699 48 Harlyn Drive Pinner

Two storey rear extension, single storey side/rear extension, enclosure of open porch to front an
2 x side dormers (Application for a Certificate of Lawful Development for a Proposed Developme

Decision: 15-09-2015 Refused

4956/APP/2015/789 48 Harlyn Drive Pinner

Two storey rear extension, single storey side extension with front extension infill and alterations

Decision: 07-05-2015 Refused Appeal: 10-08-2015 Allowed

Comment on Relevant Planning History

4956/APP/2015/2699 CLD - Two storey rear extension, single storey side/rear extension,
enclosure of open porch to front and 2 x side dormers (refused)

4956/APP/2015/789 - Two Storey side/rear extension with alterations to existing side
elevation (refused, allowed on appeal)

4956/APP/2010/2145 - Two Storey side/rear extension with alterations to existing side
elevation (refused)

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Advertisement Expiry Date - Not applicable
Site Notice Expiry Date - 2/11/15

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Three neighbours were consulted for a period of 21 days expiring on the 22 October 2015 and a site
notice was posted.

1 response was received from near by neighbours, identifying the following issues:

- The size and scale is out of context with the neighbouring properties

- The front elevation will appear more imposing than adjacent properties

- The apex of the roof is higher than the adjacent properties

- The additional bulk will have a significant visual impact on the character of the neighbourhood
created by the existing chalet bungalows.

- Visual impact exacerbated as the basement will be visible from front and rear glass covered light
wells

- Volume of the basement is significant over development of the property

- Concerns over the nature of the necessary excavations for the basement

- How will materials be removed from site, large vehicles are unsuited to the narrow local roads

- Access to the site should be limited to prevent conflict with access to the nearby school

- Due to scale of development the noise and disruption will result in prolonged reduction to
neighbouring amenity

- The application has no information on how surrounding properties will be monitored for deformation
before, during and after development. There is also no mention of any party wall.

Northwood Residents Association:

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



- The basement has an area marked as a gym; all ancillary room should be classified as bedrooms.
Therefore this should be considered as a six bed dwelling

- The basement has a bedroom, living accommodation and an outside entrance, so could easily
become two separate dwellings

- The area of the basement is considerably larger than the original dwelling

- There is no flood risk assessment. This size of excavation could cause problems to the natural
underground water flow of the area

- Not enough light to the basement for it to be suitable living accommodation

- No provision for car parking. The existing front drive could not accommodate the number of car
parking spaces for a 6 bed dwelling

- No provision for bin or cycle store

- The roof design is out of keeping with the area

- The entire project in un-neighbourly and out of keeping with the area

Internal Consultees

HIGHWAYS OFFICER
Recommended for approval from a highways/transport viewpoint.

ACCESS OFFICER
No objections received.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT
No objections received.

FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER
The proposed development is in Flood Zone 1 as defined by the Environment Agency (little or no risk
from river flooding).

The proposal includes a basement. This basement appears to be the full width of the building and on
one side is to the boundary of the plot and could impede the flow of any ground water present on
site. Without a site investigation to inform this proposal, it does not demonstrate that the
development is safe and does not increase flood risk to the surrounding property. Therefore, it is
considered contrary to Flood Risk Policy EM6 and emerging Policy DMHD 3 in Local Plan 2.

Basement:

There has been no site investigation submitted with the planning application to inform the
development proposals.

For information: Local Plan Part 2 Paragraph 39 also states "Proposals for subterranean
development which would extend the full length or the full width of a property will not be
supported. This is because excavation would create disturbance to the house and problems for
neighbouring properties. Sufficient margins should be left between the site boundaries and any
subterranean development to allow for on-site drainage mitigation and prevent surface water run-
off."

Where a basement is proposed a site investigation must be provided to establish the level of
groundwater on the site. (This should be undertaken at the appropriate time of year as groundwater
levels fluctuate).

Where a basement is proposed suitable mitigation methods must be provided to ensure the risk to
others is not increased. This will include leaving sufficient space either side of the development to
ensure the passage of groundwater past the proposed development.

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



Surface Water:

The Supporting Statement refers to a drainage report. However, this has not been submitted. This
information would then determine the types of SUDS suitable for site. This information has not been
provided so a suitable SuDs scheme has not been demonstrated.

Should the information required to over come the above concerns be submitted and the scheme be
permitted, an appropriately worded condition will then be requested.

RECOMMENDATIONS: | object to the proposed development as the application does not
demonstrate that the development will be safe and not increase flood risk to the surrounding area as
required by Policy: EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies
(Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the London Plan (March 2015). National Planning
Policy Framework 2012.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The proposed site currently comprises of a single residential dwelling within its own curtilge
and therefore constitutes 'previously developed land' i.e. 'brownfield land'. There is a
presumption in favour of residential development on brownfield land subject to other
material planning considerations as detailed below.

The area is an established residential area and therefore the principle of residential
development of the site is considered acceptable.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Paragraph 4.1 of HDAS Residential Layouts specifies that in new developments numerical
densities are considered to be more appropriate to larger sites and will not be used in the
assessment of schemes of less than 10 units, such as this proposal. The key
consideration is therefore whether the development sits comfortably within its environment
rather than a consideration of the density of the proposal.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

No objections are raised to the scheme in terms of airport safeguarding.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable, the site is not located within the green belt.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new
buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place.
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the layout and appearance of new development should "harmonise with the
existing street scene or other features of the area." The NPPF notes the importance of
achieving design which is appropriate to its context stating that 'Permission should be
refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for
improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions.'

The street scene is characterised by two housing types. These comprise two storey semi
detached properties set beneath traditional hipped roofs and detached chalet bungalows
(as the existing dwelling) with the ridge line at right angles to the road and a forward facing
half hip, many of which have been extended with side dormer windows. The bungalows are

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



by far the predominant housing type and there is a clear separation between these types
which occurs at no.17 and 44 Harlyn Drive. The application site lies within the area
predominantly characterised by bungalows.

The proposed dwelling measures 9.8m in width by 13.2m in depth set back from the
northern side boundary by 1.1m. On the southern side the proposal includes a 1.95m wide
single storey flat roof element, with the central two storey element set beneath a large
crown roof of 6.75m in height (5.5m at the eaves).

The basement is set beneath a glazed walk on roof at ground level at the front, with an
external access stairwell in the rear garden and would not be readily visible outside of the
application site. The proposed design of the replacement dwelling, including the large
crown roof presents a bulky and incongruous addition to the street scene. It is
acknowledged that the side dormer windows on many of the chalet bungalows, including
those approved by the Planning Inspector on a previous application for this property, create
a more block-like appearance to the original profiles of the bungalows, however they are for
the main set down and maintain a subservient appearance to the original roof profiles. The
proposed crown would be a substantial increase in scale and massing of the roof, with an
increase in the front and side profiles, and a shallow pitch which would be clearly visible
from the street and reflect neither the design of the adjacent chalet bungalows or the
traditional two storey properties near by.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would be an incongruous addition to the wider
street scene and fails to complement the character of the surrounding area. As such the
proposal fails to comply with Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 1 - Strategic Policies.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) SPD: Residential Layouts
advises all residential developments and amenity space should receive adequate daylight
and sunlight. The daylight and sunlight available to adjoining properties should be protected
with adequate distance maintained to overcome possible domination. The SPD states that
as a guide, the distance between habitable room windows should not be less than 21m.

The proposal development sits on the same footprint as the existing dwelling and the
approved rear and side extensions, extending approximately 2.75m beyond the rear
building line of no. 50 and 2.35m beyond no.46. In the previous application for the rear
extension, the Planning Inspector noted that the effect of the two storey addition would not
be significant in terms of outlook or visual intrusion given the relative alignment of the
neighbouring properties. The proposal includes a side window serving bedroom no.3 facing
the existing side dormer windows on no.50. It was noted that the site visit that the two
windows primarily affected both had a high level top hung opening casement, suggesting
they may be bathroom windows however it was not possible to determine if these were
obscure glazed. It is noted that the existing dwelling already has a side window facing no.
50 which serves a bedroom and given the proposed bedroom will also be served by an
additional rooflight, it would be possible to condition the side window to be obscure glazed if
necessary. As such, the application proposal would not represent an unneighbourly form of
development and would thus meet the requirements of Policies BE20 and BE21 of the
adopted Hillingdon Local Plan and section 3.0 of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility
Statement (HDAS): Residential Extensions as well as the London Plan (March 2015) Policy
3.5.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



710

7.1

712

713

714

715

7.16

717

London Plan seeks to ensure that all housing developments are of the highest quality, both
internally and externally, and in relation to their context. It sets out the minimum internal
floor spaces required for flat developments in order to ensure that there is an adequate
level of amenity for existing and future occupants.

The London Plan sets out the minimum internal floor spaces required for flat developments
in order to ensure that there is an adequate level of amenity for existing and future
occupants. It recommends a minimum standard of 113sqm for a 4 bed 6 person house.
The floor plans show this is a substantial dwelling providing well above this level including
in excess of 200sgm of living/kitchen /dining space, well above the London Plan
requirements.

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) considers whether the traffic generated by proposed
developments is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic
flows and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

Policy AM14 states that new development will only be permitted where it is in accordance
with the Council's adopted Car Parking Standards. These require a maximum provision of
1.5 off-street parking spaces for each dwelling.

The existing dwelling is served by two parking spaces on the driveway to the front. The
proposed lightwll would reduce the amount of space within the site frontage, but there
would still be adequate space to park two cars. There have been no objections made by
the Highways team and the parking provision accords with the Council's SPD on parking
standards which stipulates a maximum of two spaces per 2+ bedroom dwelling.

Therefore, it is considered that the development would comply with Policy AM14 of the
adopted Hillingdon Local Plan, 2012, Part 2.
Urban design, access and security

Section 4 of the Council's HDAS: Residential Layouts states that development should
incorporate usable attractively laid out and conveniently located amenity space and a 5 bed
property would require a minimum of 100sgm. This is an good sized plot which will provide
adequate private garden areas to the rear of the property. The proposal therefore complies
with policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

Disabled access

The Access Officer has not raised any concerns with relation to this application
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not relevant to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Not relevant to this application.
Sustainable waste management

Not relevant to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not relevant to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site is not located within an area identified as being at risk of flooding, however the
proposal does include a large basement and therefore consideration of drainage and

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

groundwater issues is necessary.

In this respect the application has been examined by the Council's Flood and Water
Management Officer who has advised that the details submitted with the application are
insufficient to demonstrated that the development will be safe and not increase flood risk to
the surrounding area.

Accordingly, the development is contrary to Policy: EM6 Flood Risk Management in
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy OE8 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policy 5.12 Flood Risk
Management of the London Plan (March 2015) and the National Planning Policy Framework
2012.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not relevant to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The objections received to the scheme have been addressed within the body of the report.
Concern was raised regarding the habitable accommodation in the basement; a revised
plan has been submitted to alter this.

Planning Obligations

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and
the Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional
floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £35 per sq metre.

Expediency of enforcement action

Not relevant to this application.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed replacement two storey dwelling is a bulky and incongruous addition to the
street scene. As such, the proposal is considered contrary to policies in the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the SPD HDAS: Residential
Layouts: and The London Plan (March 2015)

Further, there is inadequate information to demonstrate that the proposal will be safe and
not increase flood risk to the surrounding area, the development is therefore also contrary
to Policy: EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies
(Nov 2012), Policy OE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012), Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the London Plan (March 2015)
and the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012).
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2.

The London Plan (March 2015).

Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



National Planning Policy Framework.

Contact Officer: Liz Arnold Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

48 Harlyn Drive

Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
4956/APP/2015/3462 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 55 |December 2015

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

HNILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



Agenda Annex

Plans for
North Applications
Planning Committee

8th December 2015

HILLINGDON

OOOOOO

LY

S

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 82 DUCKS HILL ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Three storey building with associated basement to provide 3 x 4-bed self
contained supported living flats with associated parking

LBH Ref Nos: 39262/APP/2014/4357

Date Plans Received:  10/12/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 04/02/2015

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



Lo £L0Z Aenuer

'ON ONIMYHA ‘31w
& B oszil

L¥EL — —

ueld ueHesoT slig
I

OS2 9WH
‘POTMUHON
PEOY [iIH S50 ‘28

‘gor

Arvos Bunquisiy@digd pews
‘PROLES BS54 4 (0)pp+ o
‘ATZ25E £SLL (00wt L

D88 1S aNysyIag

10SpUI ‘u0ia

‘sienbg uoi3 15

sisupied 7 Bulquis 'r'H

0SZL:L - ATVIS . sell|y Ul 8E0S
NV1d NOILYOOT 3LIS i S
/., ; 7 ,./f
/..,. A .\.\\ _\.)/..x.r./
% i e, . ,v e
/./ » va s

Page 59




PO £1L0z 1snBy Uikl

ON a1va
el N £v @ 00z —
pasodoiy 58
CLIER eli]

EIL
QsZ 9vH
‘POOMULON
PEOY [IH $49n0 ‘28
‘8or

sroo Bunquisiu@diud jews
FFOLES E5LL (Ohprs 4
LTTTSB 5L (0he+ 1L

083 15 BIyspag

0SpUIp, ‘uoi3

‘aienbg Lo 1§

siauped B Bullqms ‘rH

Salja|\ Ul 9|eos

— . .
o4 E 0

002:L - 3TVOS
d3S0Qd0Odd S NV1d X009




BASEMENT PLAN as PROPOSED
SCALE -1:100

0 5 10
I e

Page 61 Scale in Metres




aoi ¥10Z Aienuer
‘ON DNIMYHO Alva

LPEL . £y @ 0021
‘0N g0r WIS

SUONEAB|T pasodold

00Z:} - 3TVIS
a3s0dO¥d se
S5z NOILVAIT3 ¥v3y

peoy I s3ond ‘28

auj punosf pawnssy

‘aor

aui| punaib pawnssy
ynrooBunguisiy@diyd pews
FROLER £5L41 (0)pb+ 4
"L122258 €5L1 (0w 1L e
089 #15 auysyeg
._QmV:__f‘ .—__D—w
.m_m.:_.vw uol3 LG
siouped 7 Bulgiis rH

PaAOWalPaUasSUlPaADW SMODUIM - EL/BOITL '8
PasIAB] JOOY - £L/LL/9Z 9

safueys ued yoEW O) SJUSWPUAWN - £L/ZL/GL 2
pabueys ued yajew o) sluBWpUSWY - FLOZ/LOED ‘P
uolsinay

002:} - ATVIS
d3sS0d0dd se
NOILVA3TE 1SIM HLNOS

-
7
1
—
|
-
=

Li'gg - afipy

G216 - 9Bpry

9+'26 - abpiy

Page 62




FIRSTFLOORPLAN as PROPOSED
SCALE -1:100

0

Page 63

5

Scale in Metres

10

IS e




GROUND FLOOR PLAN as PROPOSED
SCALE -1:100

0 5 10

_ IS e

Page 64 Scale in Metres




Tl
st
s =1 i
A - - !
i I | i
| ! B = =w ! !
e AW R
v '\.1.-" )

4150

SECOND FLOOR PLAN as PROPOSED
SCALE -1:100

P! 0 5 10

Page 65 Scale in Metres




aok ¥L0Z Asenuep
‘ON SNIMYHO 31va

LPEL ON 8Or £v @ oozt E—

suoneas|3 apig pasodoiy

E=ailin
asz avH
'POOMULION
peOY IIH S3oNa ‘28
‘gor

Ao Bulquisiy@diyd :rews
PROLER £S21 (00 14
‘LEzess €541 (0w L

D88 $15 sdysyieg
JOSPUIA 'UDI3
‘asenbsg uo)3 1§

siouped g Bullquis \rH

PEACLUBIPEUESULPBADL SMOPUIM, - £1L/80IPL €
pasiaal Jooy - EL/LLGZ 9

safiueys ueyd ysiew o) SJUSWPUBWY - EL/ZLEL 2
sabueyo ueid yojew o) sluBWPUWY - PLOZ/LOZ0 ‘P
SUOISIAEY

002:L - ATVIS
a3S0d0OHd se
NOILVAZT3 LSV3 HLEON

@Al 9SNOH Jouep

002:L - ATVIS
a3S0dOdd se
NOILVAITA 1LS3IM HLNOS

peoy [I!H s3ong

S

saneyy u| 8jeas

HE EE =EE == =u
4 Gl oL ] 0

peoy |IIH s%2nQ

]
BAlI(Q 9SNOH JOUBp

Page 66




N

C%wn Oaks

Woodland
Heights

#
N/ Oakwood

N

(7

Edgewood

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

82 Ducks Hill Road

Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
39262/APP/2014/4357 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 67 |December 2015

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address HOLLAND & HOLLAND SHOOTING SCHOOL DUCKS HILL ROAD
NORTHWOOD
Development: Extension to existing reception building and new underground shooting range

including the demolition of the existing pavilion and garage.

LBH Ref Nos: 16568/APP/2015/3140

Date Plans Received:  18/08/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 18/08/2015

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



- LoL—£zzt B3
¥ © 00z m Loz o § 40

4 1 1 1
=L L0100 C pleuopow
NYld LS SNILSIXT
NOISNILXT 7

LINIWHSIBENAZE ONIJTING 0350d0¥d
ANYTIOH % ONYTIOH

NOUGHISI0  3IvD A3H




|

011-LZ21 i

LYOD0Y:

s §
TLHD IVOO00ZL M stoz A0 | 40 M

o Lo0 0 pleuopaw

NYld 315 0350d04d

LINIWHSIBENI3Y #
NOISNILX3 ONIJTINE 0350d0dd
ANYTIOH # ONYTIOH

NOUGMISI0  3Iv0 A3d
IS TS IR0 =
SLNONGNIRY BONIR IR0 ¥
et LT T VIR ]




- Z01-£221 s
YOOI HO IVOOO0LL m” SLOZ AVW m_m 40 W

Lo | g |

.\/ 0oL T3S
7| N¥1d ONILSIX3
ST g NG
SNOUVATTI ONY SNYId ONILSIXT
NOISNILXT 7 2w
ANZWHSISYNAZY ONIOTINE 03S0d0Nd Ll B
ANYTIOH % ONYTIOH

NOUGHISIO  3IvD AJH

~
0L TS 8...?
NOUYAZTI 1S3M ONILSIX3 NOILYAZT3 HLNOS ozﬂ%
|||||||| il e T — - 7
T ] | 110
[T OO0 17T

oo IWIE
NOILYAZT3 1S¥3 ONILSIX3
i

00LE IWE
NOILYAZT3 HLMON ONILSIX3
a4

B fnumﬁ;:;jg. ____________________ i g ||||41|ww__ ¢_._;:m.;.;a:;_ :;,:a:;.asgga =

CEALYIRNARCD 38 0 SONMYED MO OMN0 SIONYCISISI ANY

e —— A 1=l T I T= SBEE EEEE T

AkviS B0 SN
STULINTIM 40 SHOGHIM ThY “Shamyid SBU AOMI TTF% G0N OO




.. _.

8 r1L-L2ZL s
CYO00Z:L WO I¥DOOLL | §L0Z ATnM [ 40 8
DOXT LHEL OEIDH e 1| WIEGN | UOpu) | i il TT | SRS W

Ee “pJeuopow
SNOUYATTI Q3S0d0dd

LINIWHSIBENI3Y #
NOISNALX3 ONIOTINE 03S0d0dd
ANYTIOH % ONYTIOH

NOUGMISI0  3Iv0 A3d
IS IS SIROULD
SINBROMINY SN GIRDRL ¥
SINGROAGIY BONN SIROUL B

3)
7 x.w..\v.\.\w___ ||||| ..___ Sk
. y ot
&
£ =5
y /
Ty ~/
. s .._.
-

THTING MIN 0L A WOK3SE3S SHOUYATTI

il

NOUYNNUNGS M0 ININIONIRACS JHL L HOMd ONY ATHNINe
CUYINARDD 38 L SINMYS0 MO ONNOY SIONVAROSI ANY

IO ADNOUI0 TLVD BERL ONY § v
T ISR DNMYE0 Q) SATAE WISV MO TSV SONMYMO.

TLVIS ML SEIHN
SEAUINTIA M SHOEHIMG T THIYED SHL AOES TWIS LOK 00

TR

(NOILYATZTI 3naL)
CED NOILYATI3 03S0d0Hd

-

(NOILYAZTE 3NL)
qL0 NOWYAIT3

(NOWYAZNI 3NHL)
BL0 NOILWAZT3

Q0L IWIS
+0 NOIWAZTI (HLIMON) 3015 03S0d0dd

B

;

0L TS
€0 NOUVAZT3 (1S3M) ¥v3Y 035040ud

00l T

20 NOIYAZT3 (HLNOS) 3AIS Q3S0doud

Page 72

0L T
L0 NOUWAZI3 (LSV3) LNOW4 03SOJ0¥d




[a Lii-zzzl ey
EVODOTE ¥ LvOO0LTL % SHOT hu__.a.-_.m 40 W

DO L OEI0H s 3| IR M OO | S Kb I | SR b
S "~ pleuopaw
13A37 0013 GNNOYY 03SOJONd
ININHSIBEN TS 7 P4
NOISNILXI SNIGTING 03500
ANYTION # ONVTIOH g _
emeat o T

NOUSHISI0  FUvD AJe

SiMnGdnY wn SLEIEL ¥ gl G| TreTereTe
SLNINOMINY MON SIENG B i b

@_a_@
L]

Page 73

BN )
MY R 0 ININERGMRD THL O) BOm DMy 4Tk Vil
ARANORROD W 0L SONNYHD NO OSNG0S SIONYAIOSD ANY

¥USE WIRCIS0 ULV S5RC0 ONY & v
T T kYm0 SIS N MO OV SO




e ciL-czEl ey
.. CYQOUZL MO LVOOOLTL m_ sioz e _n a0 m
DOTT LHEL OEIDH e )| DTN | V0P | i Aurplied T | SRS W
- pleuopow

N¥ld J00d 0350d40ud

LINIWHSIBENI3Y #
NOISNALX3 ONIDTINE 0350d0ud
ANYTIOH % ONYTIOH

NOUGHISI0  3Iv0 AJd
IES TS RO =
SINBROMINY SN GLEDL
0300Y 1N 008 SLRALL B

4008 UVE
LY W3

PN

VI 1804 TYHALG

2008 118

]

2008 1Vl

]

2000 1V

FTAY
g

O,

Page 74

Saom 40
HOUYYMLNGD O INGREONIAROD 3L 01 ey ATILVIOIAM
TCLYINIAACD 3 01 SORMYED MO sy

s &y

N
¥IOZ HIBOLD0 (ELYO SERLD ONY § 'F
T T I-5969/1 DHMYSD QU1 SATAHNS HISWT HD OWE SINMYHD

qavis 5T
SIULINTEN W SNOGNGM TTY DMMYE0 SHL ROMS TTV05 10N 00
]




._ __

s S11—LZ2! s
EYOD0ZIL HO IVOOOLL m_ sLoz Anr “n 40 w
L] A | wope |

5] /“pleuopaul

8-8 F ¥-¥ SNOIWLD3S 0350d404d

LINIWHSIBENI3Y #
NOISNALX3 ONIOTINE 03S0d0dd
ANYTIOH 7 QNYTIOH

NOUGMISI0  3Iv0 A3d

DHTING WIN 01 M VINONIGH SNOUITS

S 40
NOUVNMINGD MO INRCONGAROD ML 0L HOWd ONY ATILYITIRM
ALYINARGD 3 0L SIANYED HO ONNOJ SIONYGOS0 ANY

FIOE WMOL0 GV ESRLO OWY G 'y
T -SSR SO 11 SAIANS KISV RO COSYID SOMNYE0

ALVIS FMATHLO SSTMN
STHLIANIA b SHOSNENK TV DMMYE0 SHL NOWS TTVS 10N 00

=W

004l TS

8-8 NOID3S 0350d0dd

004l TS
¥=¥ NOILD3S 0350d0dd

Page 75



[« | zi1-szz) F=i

E¥O00Z: L HO LVOOOLTL m swoz anr [§ 40 m
| S— A |
00T LRE OBID) i+ )| OE G | Uopnam | ad Linchilled I | SqRMsanang vor

pleuopow

13A37 ININISYE 0350d40ud
LINIWHSIBENI3Y #

An [0 DHOTY WM 0L
NOISNALXI SNIQTINE Q350d0dd o THYNEINVI  GMLI00 LOVHLEE SUMN KI5 dYHL 13T RN
ANYTIOH % ONYTIOH 10N WIS 340053 — 30NV SRLOOHS — —— CLNNOM SIS — OFTI3H B
= e
| u 1
NOUWGHISIO  JUWD AJd ﬁ. H ﬂ. i
EE=NeTRETT T TN —
SINBROMINY SN GLEDL i ] e
3100 MK TOWOTY  SLR B T

Fi

Page 76

NOUVNMINDD 5O INGAGOAGARGD JHL DL HOW ONY ATEH
TEYISANDD 35 0L SIMMYED HO ONNOS SIDMVSIHISN ANY

2
i

FIOT H3E0100 LY BSRLD
T T *V=595RT INMYED (11 SAINENG KIEYT KD CISYE SOMMA

s
CALYLS FMHIMLO SETMN
STLINTEN N SNOSMIRG Tiv ONMYS0 SML RCWS TS LON 00




i

E—— 7
/ 8T Il (Y-

W T N <Ay
~Re N

bafiold

2 ?-N’.r\_
Deadman's .- p23
Grove . ",

Sgia
Scarlel/Spring

San¥y

Raveners
Spring

Duck's Hill

/ Highbones, -
’*‘_,
/ Q )
é Youngwood %
Fagn 4”
<

& S

& A

blofes: Site Address: Holland & Holland LONDON BOROUGH

Site boundary Shooting School ORF I.'LILIt'IgGDON
. esiaents oservices

For identification purposes only. Ducks Hill Road Planning Section
This copy has been made by or wit-h NorthWOOd Civic Centre, Uxbrildge‘ Middx, UB8 1UwW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . ' ’ ; .
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Act 1988 (the Act). 16568/APP/2015/3140 1:6,000
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:
© Crown copyright and database
rights 2015 Ordnance Survey North Page 77 December 2015 | IN L
100019283 CENTIGR




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 48 HARLYN DRIVE PINNER

Development: Two storey, 5-bed, detached dwelling with habitable basement space with
associated landscaping involving demolition of existing dwelling house

LBH Ref Nos: 4956/APP/2015/3462

Date Plans Received:  15/09/2015 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 15/09/2015
Date Application Valid: 30/09/2015 30/09/2015

North Planning Committee - 8th December 2015
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



| REFERENCE: 111-GP

| THIS DRAWING IS THE COPYRIGHT OF 3045
DO NOT COPY OR REPRODUCE WITHOUT THE
WRITTEN CONSENT OF 2.0.4.8

IF THERE ARE ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN
GIVEN DIMENSIONS AND SITE DIMENSIONS
NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY FOR
CLARIFICATION BEFORE PROCEEDING FURTHER.

IF IN DOUBT ASK

DRAWING STATUS: P - PRELIMINARY
T -TENDER
D -DESIGN
PL - PLANNING
BR - BUILDING REGULATIONS
C - CONSTRUCTION
AB - AS BUILT
P - PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT
PA -PRIOR APPROVAL
MS - MEASURED SURVEY

DWG  REV: DATE: DESCRIPTION
STATUS 110915 |
PL

COMMENTS:

CLIENT:
GREG PARRIS

PROJECT TITLE:

| DEMOLITION OF EXISTING HOUSE AND
PROPOSED NEW-BUILD DWELLING

| CONSISTING OF BASEMENT, GROUND AND

| FIRST FLOOR.

SITE :

148 HARLYN DRIVE
PINNER. MIDDLESEX

HAS 2DF

DRAWING TITLE: SCALE
SITE LOCATION PLAN 1:1250@ A4
DWG NUMBER: SHEET: 10F 1
111-08

DRAWN BY: DOA

DOAS

IDESIGN ORIENTED ARCHITECTURE STUDIO

PLANNING APPLICATION et S

Email: derekoafrivief@icloud.com

Page 79




opacl, ...Sa._.o L
OO TN NOCNO'T MAIA HIVAH 09

OIANLS TUALIALHIEY ELNATHO NOISEd

SYro%

VOurdd AH NAVHO

£0°INATT
1401 LAAHS SMAGWON OMA

NOLLYOIiddY uuﬂzzﬁa

azusinon3a 3s oL saton3a [EGNG

A3

LI

9r 'ON

1




O PO A oA I
SYECILOORLO AL
00 {N NOONOT MEIA HIVIH 09

.mo-n__b.rw THALIATTHIY TAINARO NOISED

SV O%

WO ™Md A NAYEA
E0-XH-T11

1401 [L3FHS SHAHNON DM

L. . SNOLIVATTE ¥V
V@001 ANV INOUAS ONLLSINT

TIVIS AL DNIMYHA

AT SYH
NHST O HANNIE
AATEA NATHYH 8¢

SIS
OO LSULL
| ANV GNAOHD “TNENASVE 10 DNLISISNOD
ONITTAMA TTNH-MEAN TTS0dOUL
NV FSN0H DNLLSEE 40 NOLLTOWSd

“ATILLL LOHrodd
SIEUVd HTID

AINANTD

SSLNANINOD

Id
.
NOLLATEOS3A ALVE ATE DT

ATAMNS ATENSVEN - W

{ IVADEddY BOMd - Vd
JINAWGOTIATG OILUIWEEd - Od
| I sv- 8y
HOLLOSOAMISNGD - 3
SNOLEVINOFH ONIGINE - ¥8
DNINNYTA - T

NOISAa O
HIANIL- L
AHVNDSTIT - SAUIVIS ONINMVEC
MEV LHNDA 57 40

| HEHLE ORICTI0E THOEE NOLY ATV 10
O ATAUVIOIIINT LOAITHYEY FHL AJLLON
SROISNEIINIC A11S CINY SNOISNIINIO NZA
NAEALHE SHIONYATEISTIA ANY TV SdIHL 41
S¥FOT 20 INTSN00 NALLM

THL INOHLA E00EE 30 X400 LON 00

| TEROE A0 1EOTEAOD SHL STONIANHA STHL

dO-11l CHONTHIIE

NOILYII'IddY ONINNYd

NOILYAT T3 dV3d ONILSIX3

ERTUn00 STy empuinog pouny _ w2 weLzn- Asepinan piingsy
Bd d
7 ’ ——
¢
nEean |
BT i _ DS
[ 0 |
| i | _ _ f i = ! 14 1
= - “ 1 ¢
il 1 1 | ! = i _ < SN |- i _
f I..«oo_-._ﬁw_ﬁ 1 B 1
| AR § 0] GOT i
4 £ Ty
MG _
ey
7 = L & H 1
i MO, £8¥ _ _
— L _ |
el | ] = - % el
_ - // \\\ =g _
¥ 1 _ . — _
by o Jo0H #1y'S _ - _
_ 9 e _
05 ‘°N _ gt 'ON _
NOILYAZT3 LNOYHd ONILSIX3
Ao sy Ao pomrssy.
— _ P— S S . -
T = 4o 00—
: | e L ....wﬂﬂﬂu%__ e —
| LLLIF= Nl
L Vs wenanh (07 ¢
| [ ] 1 I —
i | — L i
. ™ ) e e )

Wiy 3o oo atrs

9 'ON

9b ‘ON

05 'ON




azvsinow3aa 38 oL s3atonaa |GG
A

NVd NOILITOW3a Y0014 ANNOYO ONILSIX3
i

R
2 Page82 ¥




0PI A e AR e

SYTTILODELO AL

A00 N NOINO'T “MAIA HIVAH 09
| OIS THALYALTHONY GHINARO NOISEA
VOaHd AH NMYHA
TO-XI-T11

1401 SLHIHS SHAFWNN DMO

SNV Td OOTS L5914

| EVO0TT CNY ANOIOHED ONLLSIXT
TI¥IS FLL SMIMYED
AT SVH

NHST O HANNIE
HAATEA NATHYH 8y

SELS

JONY GNOOHD “INFWESYE 10 ONLLSTSNOD
DONITTEMA TTINEMEN JIS040HS
ANV 35N0H ONLLSINE 40 NOLLITOWA

“ATILLL LOHrodd
ShYd DTID

AINETTD

SSLNANINOD

d
sUGhIl  SNIVIS
NOLLAPSS3T AIVA ATE DT

ATAENS ATENSVEN - 88

{ IVADEIY BOMd - Vd
JINAWGOTIATG OILUIWEEd - Od
LI sv- av

HOLLOSOAMISNGD - 3
SNOLVINOTE ONIIINE - 54
e gl

a4

' §
T od SAIVIS ONIMVED
NSV 18100 AT 41

HEHIENT DRICEEDOEE THOIH8 NOLVIITEY 1D
O ATAUVIOIIINT LOAITHYEY FHL AJLLON
SNOISNIINIC LIS GNY SNOISNEINIO NEATD
NAAMLAE SHIDNVATEISIT ANY T4 Td3HL 41
S¥FOT 20 INTSN00 NALLM

L IO EIN00EITE 90 A0 LOK 00
S0 T 40 THOTHAOD HHL STONINVHO STHL

dO-11l CHONTHIIE

9% ON

woz

NOILYII1ddY ONINNY 1d

WS

wgl

NV1d 40014 LS4I4 ONILSIX3

=

a\

8% ON
|
S
ey
= HI
7 1anan 38015
WOHOID H3LE¥H Sanva
= o~
shis i
L y
iy
iz Ny
o
4
i e
Vet i s
@
mrz 8 nere
g T U
& L s
£WODMO3E L RCO¥aIa
St N
N |

Fa

wipl

9 °N

NY1d 400714 ANNOHD ONILSIX3

AVMIAIEO LNOHS

a4
%

=

S9T
=Ha,

]
WOOM N

o2 | e 4
AR o D) =ha &
1 R (]
waon b WOGH SNING

RGLE e

4 5

E
=3

S
233

mg,

£d

FOH NIFUS

NN WY

RE

2

Do

S

|

LElEL L

_
|
|
|
A
o |
!

03ue
LEELE

|
|
|
|

e e

0S 'ON

Page 83

2



00 N NOANOTAAIN HIVAH 09 NOLLYDIddY ONINNY 1d I — N S O oL S G

'NOILITOW3G - NvTd 34IS HO014 ONNOYD ONILSIX3

Aipunion paurssy g‘iﬂa«hilulll

— NOLLITOREC NV 311§ P e
EVB00TT| iyl dsras SNLISE SN
SO INE = E AVAHLYE DITENnd

A

a1vos L oniva et

=

..un_wmtw_ B

-
[

HATMC NATAVH §% AVMBNEA LNOH

ANV GNAOHD “INTNISVE 10 ONLISISNOD 9r 'ON 8v °N =08 ‘ON

| TEF0E 40 LHOMAI0D HL STONINVHG STHL

L LIOHLIN BNA0RETE 10 Ad0D 10N 00

do-1tl “HONTHHATT

Page 84




O PO A oA I
SYECILOORLO AL
00 {N NOONOT MEIA HIVIH 09

.mo-n__b.rw THALIATTHIY TAINARO NOISED

SV O%

WO ™Md A NAYEA
Q- X111
1401 (LFIHS SHAFWNN DMO
NV 215

b g ¥
| EV@0oT1 HOOTS ONAOHD ONLLSINT

TIVIS “H1LL ONIMYEd

AT SYH
NHST O HANNIE
AATEA NATHYH 8¢

SIS
OO LSULL

| ANV GNAOHD “TNENASVE 10 DNLISISNOD
ONITTAMA TTNH-MEAN TTS0dOUL

NV FSN0H DNLLSEE 40 NOLLTOWSd

“ATILLL LOHrodd

STHHVd DTHD
LINATTS
S INANINOD
m
d
CsUslil  SNIVIS
NOLLAPSS3T CAIVA L ATH Da.
ATAMNS ATENSVEN - W
{ IVACEAdY BOMd - Vd
JINAWGOTIATG OILUIWEEd - Od
| LI sv- av
HOLLOSOAMISNGD - 3
SNOLEVINOFH ONIGINE - ¥8
DNINNYTA - T
NOISAa O
HIANIL- L
AAVNISTTTEd - J  SAIVIS Oﬂrsg.
MEV LHNDA 57 40

| HEHLE ORICTI0E THOEE NOLY ATV 10
O ATAUVIOIIINT LOAITHYEY FHL AJLLON
SROISNEIINIC A11S CINY SNOISNIINIO NZA
NAEALHE SHIONYATEISTIA ANY TV SdIHL 41
S¥FOT 20 INTSN00 NALLM

THL INOHLA E00EE 30 X400 LON 00

| TEROE A0 1EOTEAOD SHL STONIANHA STHL

dO-11l CHONTHIIE

NOLLYJINddV DNINNYd

e —— e i

fuepunog pewnssy

9F 'ON

NYId 3LIS HOO0Td ONNOHD ONILLSIX3

AVMHLYE Orland ._

APAMINEG LNOYS

B8 'ON
= =
— //
L + &
It
-
o | =
T nocwsaan |
£ [
s
ar & o
-yaaurs |
: - i | L
wmouw Moo Do
L] ATl e -
= e T g
= pAL ]
e
sirg 0N L
= | 4 i _
1 e ¥
ta {
Waane 4
- i
[ !
i { H
h L e §
{ L \
12 {
b }
WS AN 5
1 }
[ 1
} o L
{ e \
'
v }
{ 1
{ sy ;
ta,

Page 85



SR il -  aawsnowaa 3s ov satonaa [
_ _Ex

OIANLS TUNLIALHOMY GALNATEO NOISIA

S o%
VO AH NAWVEA
. POWCTTE

1401 [L33HS &MEE DM

NI NOLLTONAD.
£VO0TT €NV SHT ONLLSIXA

IS UL ONIMYET

..un-ﬂmﬂz
ST IAUIN NN
AATHA NATAVH 8¢

-dis

ANV ANAOHD %3&%
ONITTEMA TINE-MAN TIS040UL
%gcﬁﬂﬂ%zﬁhﬁqﬁa




0PI A e AR e
SYTTILODELO AL
A00 N NOINO'T “MAIA HIVAH 09

HOIANES TANLIALTHIWY TEINATHO NOISIa

SV O%

VO ™d SAH NMVHO
TO-NC-TTH
1401 SLHIHS SHAFWNN DMO

NVl NOLLITOWET

| EVO0TT A0 DONLLSIXT
IIVIS AL ONIMYET
40T SVH

NHST O HANNIE

HAATEA NATHYH 8y

SHLS

JONY GNOOHD “INFWESYE 10 ONLLSTSNOD

DONITTEMA TTINEMEN JIS040HS
ANV 35N0H ONLLSINE 40 NOLLITOWA

“ATILLL LOHrodd
ShYd DTID

AINETTD

SSLNANINOD

wa

sUGhIl  SNIVIS
NOLLAPSS3T AIVA ATE DT

ATAENS ATENSVEN - 88
{ IVADEIY BOMd - Vd
JINAWGOTIATG OILUIWEEd - Od

' §
AEVNINTTTSE - SOIVIS ONIMVED
NSV 18100 AT 41

HEHIENT DRICEEDOEE THOIH8 NOLVIITEY 1D
O ATAUVIOIIINT LOAITHYEY FHL AJLLON
SNOISNIINIC LIS GNY SNOISNEINIO NEATD
NAAMLAE SHIDNVATEISIT ANY T4 Td3HL 41
S¥FOT 20 INTSN00 NALLM

L IO EIN00EITE 90 A0 LOK 00
S0 T 40 THOTHAOD HHL STONINVHO STHL

dO-11l CHONTHIIE

NOLLYOI'ldd¥ ONINNY1d
woz WG|

wgy w

9% ON

[o])|

4008 1714

azHsnow3a 3g oL saton3a [TTTGN

wipl

N¥1d NOILINTOW3Aa 400d ©NILSIX3

L

Joas
nsesd

A

vV

2008 LV

ATM

Page 87



0PI A e AR e
SYTTILODELO AL
A00 N NOINO'T “MAIA HIVAH 09

HOIANES TANLIALTHIWY TEINATHO NOISIa

SV o%

VOO ad AH NMVEG
TO-XH-T11

1401 ‘L33HS SWAFGWNN OMA
EV@I001:1 NV 400U ONLISIXT
TIVIS UL ONIMYHT

407 SVH

XAST TN “HANNI

AATHO NATIVH 81

SHLS

HOOTd 15u14

| ANV GNAOHD “LNFINSVE 40 ONLISISNOD
ONITTAMA TUNE-MAN ATSOIOUL

NV FSN0H ONLLSIKE 40 NOLLITOWAd

HTILLL EoHrodd
ShYd DTID

AINETTD

SSLNANINOD

I

sLiL SNIVLS
NOLLATASS3T AIVA ATE DT

ATAENS ATENSVEN - 88
{ IVADEIY BOMd - Vd
INAWGOTIAT QLIS - Od
LI sv- av

ZE’E..

HIANIL- L
AEVNINTTTSE - SOIVIS ONIMVED

NSV 18100 AT 41

AR DRICTI0HS THOJHE XOLIV ATV 1
O ATAUVIOIIINT LOAITHYEY FHL AJLLON
SNOISNIINIC LIS GNY SNOISNAINIO NEATD
NAAMLAE SHIDNVATEISIT ANY T4 Td3HL 41
S¥FOT 20 INTSN00 NALLM

L IO EIN00EITE 90 A0 LOK 00
S0 T 40 THOTHAOD HHL STONINVHO STHL

dO-11l CHONTHIIE

woz

NOLLYOI1ddY ONINNY1d

WS

wgl

4008 1714

wp)|

NY1d 4004 ONILSIX3

4000 1V14

4000 LV14

L

Lot
nsesd

vV

2008 LV

Page 88



0PI A e AR e
SYTTILODELO AL
A00 N NOINO'T “MAIA HIVAH 09

HOIANES TANLIALTHIWY TEINATHO NOISIa

SV O%

VOa/dd AH NV
FO-XI-TT1
1401 (LFIHS SHAFWNN DMO
snouvazm sy
b 4 AT T "
V0011 ANV SHTONLLSINT .
IIVIS AL ONIMYET

AT SYH
NHST O HANNIE
HAATEA NATHYH 8y

SELS

HOOT 1541

| ANV ANAOND THINESVE 10 ONLISTSNOD
ONITTAMA TTAE-MAN AISOd0HL

ANV 3S00H ONLLSIXE 40 NOLLITOWEG

“ATILLL LOHrodd

ShYd DTID

SINATTD
S INANINOD
WEE L
TEd
i
d
sUGhIl  SNIVIS

NOLLAPSS3T AIVA ATE DT

ATAENS ATENSVEN - 88

{ IVADEIY BOMd - Vd
JINAWGOTIATG OILUIWEEd - Od
LI sv- av

HOLLOSOAMISNGD - 3

SNOLVINOTE ONIIINE - 54
DNINNYTA - T
NOISAA - G

el §
AEVNINTTTSE - SOIVIS ONIMVED

NSV 18100 AT 41

“HAHTEN DRICEHEDOEE TdO488 NOLIVIATEYID
A0S ATAIFIOTNT LOAITHIEY FHL AdLLON
SNOISNAWIC 31IS (INY SNOSNIINII NAAD
NAAMLAE SHIDNVATEISIT ANY T4 Td3HL 41

EEO00T 0 INTSNOD NALLIA,
HHL INOHLIIAN 0008438 80 X400 LON 00

dO-11l CHONTHIIE

woz

NOLLYOI'lddY ONINNY 1d

wsp (g
£54

e
rd

we| wol w wg|

NOILVATT3 SHY ONILSIX3

e _J

55T
i (|
I [LL L
-
M....||| |||U.W. 3
05 'ON //.; u _y
=1 2

NOILYATTI3 SH1 ONILSIX3

|

|
|
| = _.m
|
|
=]
./// U . =
_x./|I-....i.i|!.|:| I LT a¥ "ON

W O RS B

v
Fe

Page 89

wERED:
e M
54

WEESD
L2



..E.gs_q_@#wmﬂ”ﬁw“_ﬂw NOLLYOI'ldd¥ ONINNY1d

00 {N NOONOT MEIA HIVIH 09

wng WS wgl LL
LOICALS TANLYALTHINY CELNATHO NOISE

SV O%

VOda AH NMYVEO

wipl

¥ - NOISIA3H NV1d 400714 LNINISVYE A3S0d0Odd

IO-Td-T11

1401 SLHIHS SHAFWNN DMO =

V0011 il NOILYILLNEA GhY SHILHOIT
| V@001 INAWASYE AASOdONd TWANLYN B0 MOTTY OL
MINMLHSI ABHIA0I SSYIO

TIVIS SFLL DNIMYEO e 7

AT SYH b e
NHST O HANNIE
HAATEA NATHYH 8y

SHLS =
TRl pr— 4
| ONY GNOOAD TNENESVE 10 DNLLSISNOD
ONITTEMC TTH-MEN TIS0d0Yd S
ANV FS10H ONLLSIXT 40 NOLLITONE WOOHHLYE =

“ALLLL LOAr0Nd :Hv

ShYd DTID

DoER

My
oosk

AINETTD

saun

0ESE

AYMTIVH %
WOCH LNYd

it e

SrBaTy Ari3eA

OEEE

SSLNANINOD

Page 90

andL
o0LL

WOCH YININID! NAD

| i 3wvasooov st azsiaay 51T v FNOBY LHONE00H
shalvil SNIYLS S NOHTYM
NOLLIRIS3 aava 38 omd
NOLLTIOWSA - NG
ATANNS OTANSVAN- S8 I (I
| TVACSAAY BORd - Vd T
LNARAOTINIG OILLIWTE G
I Sv- 8
KOLUOSHHISNOD 3

i |z :b 4\ u* I3 ke 4«.I B g
bt e T apey ozve ase! T e

ooz
KOS O

g

i1t

QL & - [orT IoWaHIL ¥OOTd
AAVNISTTTEd - J  SOLVIS ONIMVHT o o ANNOND HIMOT M
NSY LA 8T 41

HUIHLENT DRI THOJE8 NOLVIATEY 1 _ e o i k2
O ATAUVIOIIINT LOAITHYEY FHL AJLLON
SNOISNEINIC LIS GNY SNOISNIINIC NEAD
NAEALHE SHIONYATEISTIA ANY TV SdIHL 41

L5104

EEO00T 0 INTSNOD NALLIA,
HHL INOHLIIAN 0008438 80 X400 LON 00

dO-11l CHONTHIIE



JeugaRap IEE]
OFTTIL0ORLO
HO0 TN NOONOT MAIA HIVAH 09

NOLLYII'IddV DONINNY1d

wope g wgl g g
POIINES UL LTHIYY (HLLNATHO NOISHO
ST oO%
VO AL NV
0-Td-111 NVY1d 400174 LSdI4 d3S0d0dd
1401 -1THHS SMAHWNN HMA

1d HOOT 1STH QA80dodd

I1VIS FLIL SNIMYEOD
a0z svit ! Ry 7
NASHTACN HANNES
AATHC NATIVH 85 |
9% ON | 87 ON —0S ON
” NV ONDHHD L ATSVH 20 ONLISISNOD ﬂ.ﬂ_ _ N e _ { | e e - =
# i
_ ZBFE
SETLLL L0 _ 2 ¢
SV DTED & i 2 m
g
ANATTD K] & Z Noo¥a38 i
| | Woowa3g 3
N :
M IHE ™ e m
= = 4
-
¢ woonaag
O 008 1 5 o
-3 WODHHIYE it
- NOWWOD = -
& =
3 3
X : m
Va . 1
WOOHHLYE i
" 3UnsNI
an Jetacnis
™ i i3l
; DNISsS3da
SRS LTINS
¥ . il &
falei) m
WooHazE g
HILSVIN 3
| b} 2
&
| m
I | &
1 SVLS / ! | I T
NOLLATASAT "0 AT DT _ i 5 F * 4
- o o 4
2 vl £

do-L

Page 91



0PI A e AR e
SYTTILODELO AL
A00 N NOINO'T “MAIA HIVAH 09

HOIANES TANLIALTHIWY TEINATHO NOISIa

SV O%

YOI SAH NMVHO
SO-Td-TTL
1401 (LFIHS SHAFWNN DMO

[EVBOOTT yorvatt INowt aasodod

TIVIS AL ONIMYHA

AT SYH
NHST O HANNIE
HAATEA NATHYH 8y

SELS

JONY GNOOHD “INFWESYE 10 ONLLSTSNOD
DONITTEMA TTINEMEN JIS040HS
ANV 35N0H ONLLSINE 40 NOLLITOWA

“ATILLL LOHrodd

ShYd DTID

AINETTD

SSINININOD

Id

sUGlIl  SNIVLS

NOLLATAS3T VA ATE oma
NOLLTICINEC - 190
ATAENS ATANSVIN - K
| TYAOEAAY BOPAS - Vd
LNAWADTINT OILLINEE - 04
L sv- &Y
@3 3
]
u
a

' §
AEVNINTTTSE - SOIVIS ONIMVED
NSV 18100 AT 41
“HAHTEN DRICEHEDOEE TdO488 NOLIVIATEYID
A0S ATAIFIOTNT LOAITHIEY FHL AdLLON

SNOISNAWIC 31IS (INY SNOSNIINII NAAD
NAAMLAE SHIDNVATEISIT ANY T4 Td3HL 41

EEO00T 0 INTSNOD NALLIA,
HHL INOHLIIAN 0008438 80 X400 LON 00

dO-11l CHONTHIIE

NOLLYOI'ldd¥ ONINNY1d

WS

Ao paamsy

wipl

9 'ON

2
NOILYAZTI LNO¥d 0350d0Hd

8F 'ON

7

05 'oN

MOTNIM LOTS 03X WNININOTY NSXMOHE ATTYINGSHL G31v00 H3aMOd - 01
HOOTN LINJWNISYE 4O ININLNO -6

HSINIS H30NZY Q3LNIVd -8

SHO0G J32Vv10 1800 WNINIWATY J31v00 H30MOd NIXO0EE ATTVINEEHL - L
‘ONNOHY Sd¥D NOLLYILNIA HLIAA LHOMSOO0H O3Xid NO-XMTYM - 8
DN HO MOONIM AVE 0329719 3TEN00 WNININATY J3U00 H30MOd NIHOHE ATTVIWEIHL - §
Sdid NMOO Y3 LYAWNIVE DADN - #

D HO SMCONIM NININNTY NIMOEE ATTVINEEHL 031V00 §30MO0d - £

HSINI4 JO0H STUL NIV -2

Page 92




0PI A e AR e
SYTTILODELO AL
A00 N NOINO'T “MAIA HIVAH 09

HOIANES TANLIALTHIWY TEINATHO NOISIa

SV O%

vod RE NMVEQ
20 Td-TT

1401 [L3FHS SHAHNON DM

| . . NI HOOTE
V@001 ANNO¥D (SO0
IIVIS AL ONIMYET

AT SVH

NHST O HANNIE
HAATEA NATHYH 8y

SELS

DONY GNOOHD INIWESVE 40 ONLISTSNOD
DONITTEMA TTINEMEN JIS040HS
ANV 35N0H ONLLSINE 40 NOLLITOWA

“ATILLL LOHrodd

STHHYVd DTID

SINATTD

S INANINOD

d

sUGhIl  SNIVIS

NOLLAPSS3T AIVA ATE DT
NOLLUTOMNEC - WG
ATAENS ATENSVEN - 88
{ IVADEIY BOMd - Vd
JINAWGOTIATG OILUIWEEd - Od
LI sv- av
]

HOLLIMISNGD -
SNOLVINOTE ONIIINE - 54
DNINNYTA - T
NOISAA - G

el §
AEVNINTTTSE - SOIVIS ONIMVED
NSV 18100 AT 41
“HAHTEN DRICEHEDOEE TdO488 NOLIVIATEYID
A0S ATAIFIOTNT LOAITHIEY FHL AdLLON

SNOISNAWIA TLIS GNY SNOSNIINIG NAAD
NHAAMLHE SADN VTSI ANN Ty TIHL A1
SF0T A0 INFSN0D KALLTEM

HHL INOHLIIA ZON00Ed38 90 X400 LON OO
“$F0T 40 LHONAI00 THL STONINVAHT STHL

dO-11l CHONTHIIE

NOLLYOI'ldd¥ ONINNY1d

woz wgy wgy w
NY1d 9400714 ANNOYD d3S0d0dd
ol &
. TISMLHDN ¥3A0 400 QIZVID 3N NO-MTYM
9% ON
8
v "rq ﬁ NOILEIOTY -
. (P s
: o 3
=8
Va =R \ \’\ il
f w [ owe
g g
a
-
R
: g
NSHOLIY m
I H
WOOH DNINIT WOOoHE SNIAT
- -l m
| i :
! 11 |
_ BiLE ﬁ 290% \_ zoal
(=] (o]
lL 1HDN4008 rl
SN NONTYM JowuNTL

6658

1996

FLILTIG S5vT

s

Vs ANV SEVID

TIEAMLHDM

ot R

Al

Page 93

g



L T NOLLYDIddV ONINNY1d
g0 TN NOONOT "MEIA HIVAH 09 4 — ﬁ m“ — E|_ m

HOIANES TANLIALTHIHY (HLNATHO NOSIa

ST Oo%

YO A NMYHO
00-Td-T11
1401 SLHIHS SHAFWNN DMO

| . N¥TIdALIS
EVBOOTT o014 annows aasodod

TIVIS “H1LL ONIMYEd
AT SYH

NHST O HANNIE
HAATEA NATHYH 8y

AN ANAOUD TNENESVE 10 DONLISISNOD
DONITTEMA TTINEMEN JIS040HS
ANV 35N0H ONLLSINE 40 NOLLITOWA

“ATILLL LOHrodd

STHHVd DTHD

SINATTD

S LNAWINOD

e

CsUslil  SNIVIS

NOLLIRS3a va Aze oma

ATAENS ATENSVIN - 88

{ IVADEIY BOMd - Vd
JINAWGOTIATG OILUIWEEd - Od
| I sv- 8y
HOLLOSOAMISNGD - 3
SNOLEVINOFH ONIGINE - ¥8
DNINNYTA - T

NOISAA - G

4L 1L
AHVNDSTIT - SAUIVIS ONINMVEC
NSV 18100 AT 41
I “HAHTEN DRICEHEDOEE TdO488 NOLIVIIATEY1D
A0S ATAIFIOTNT LOAITHIEY FHL AdLLON

SMOTENENIC LIS [N SMNOISNENIO NEATD
NAAMLAE SHIDNVATEISIT ANY T4 Td3HL 41

SF0T A0 INFSN0D KALLTEM
THL INOHLIN ZO000Ed38 90 X400 LON 00
“$F0T 40 LHONAI00 THL STONINVAHT STHL

dO-11l CHONTHIIE

Kiepunog pewnssy 4

9F 'ON

NYId 31IS H0O01d ONNOHD 03S0408d

AVAHLYE Drand

AVAMINEG LNOYS

8% 'ON

NI W

Aippunog pounssy

y ...._ oy

Page 94



WY PRO[METMAT RO TR
SPECILDORLO AL
00 {N NOONOT MEIA HIVIH 09

HOIANES TANLIALTHIWY TEINATHO NOISIa

SV o%

VOl AH NMWYHA
60-"1d-111
1401 (LITHS SHAGWAN DMO

EVBIOOLT | yorvadTa SHT dasodoud

TIVIS SFLL DNIMYEO

AT SYH

NHST O HANNIE
HAATEA NATHYH 8y
SHLS

HOOTd 151

JONY GNOOHD " INFWESYE 10 ONLLSTSNOD
DNITTEMA TTINEMEN JIS040H

ANV FS00H ONLLSING 40 NOLLITOMEC

HILLL EoHrodd
ShYd DTID

AINETTD

SINAWINOD
d
sLiL SNIVLS
NOLLATASS3T AIVA ATE DT

ATAENS ATENSVEN - 88

vd
ad

- 8Y
o |
o
gl

a4

HIANIL- L
AEVNINTTTSE - SOIVIS ONIMVED
NSV 18100 AT 41

HAHTENS DRICEHEDOEE TdO488 NOLIVIATEVID
A0S ATAIFIOTNT LOAITHIEY FHL AdLLON
SNOISNAWIC Z1IS (INY SNOSNIINKI NAAID
NAAMLAE SHIDNVATEISIT ANY T4 Td3HL 41

S¥FOT 20 INTSN00 NALLM
L IO EIN00EITE 90 A0 LOK 00
)G 40 THOTHAAOD SHL STONINYHA STHL

dO-11l CHONTHIIE

woz

NOLLYIIdd¥ DNINNY 1d

WS

wgl

-+

v

wp)|

L NOILLYAZT3 3dIS SHT d3s0d0odd

- -
_1 m i i
A
8% 'ON
£ ! D z

Page 95

DN HO MOONIM AVE 0329719 T8N0 WNININATY J31Y00 H30MOd NSXN0HE ATTVINHIHL - §
Sdid NMOGO Y3 LYAWNIVE DADN - #

D HO SMCONIM NININNTY NSMOEE ATTYIWEEHL 031V00 H30MO0d - €

SNOISNILX3 SH3IWH0O 3015 M3N -2

S1HOMHO0H 3T8YNIJ0 - L

‘310N



WY PRO[METMAT RO TR
SPECILDORLO AL
00 {N NOONOT MEIA HIVIH 09

HOIANES TANLIALTHIWY TEINATHO NOISIa

SV O%

VO SAH NMVHO
LO-Td-TTH
1401 SLHIHS SHAFWNN DMO

[EVBOOTT gopvaama sHTdasodod

TIVIS SFLL DNIMYEO

AT SYH
NHST O HANNIE
HAATEA NATHYH 8y

SHLS
S
JONY GNOOHD " INFWESYE 10 ONLLSTSNOD

DONITTEMA TTINEMEN JIS040H
ANV FS00H ONLLSING 40 NOLLITOMEC

HTILLL LOHrOdd

ShYd DTID

SINATTD

SINAWINOD

d
sUGhIl  SNIVIS
NOLLATASS3T AIVA ATE DT

ATAENS ATENSVEN - 88

{ IVADEIY BOMd - Vd
INAWGOTIAT QLIS - Od
LI sv- av
o |

o

gl

a4

HIANIL- L
AEVNINTTTSE - SOIVIS ONIMVED
NSV 18100 AT 41

HAHTENS DRICEHEDOEE TdO488 NOLIVIATEVID
A0S ATAIFIOTNT LOAITHIEY FHL AdLLON
SNOISNAWIC Z1IS (INY SNOSNIINKI NAAID
NAAMLAE SHIDNVATEISIT ANY T4 Td3HL 41

S¥FOT 20 INTSN00 NALLM
L IO EIN00EITE 90 A0 LOK 00
)G 40 THOTHAAOD SHL STONINYHA STHL

dO-11l CHONTHIIE

woz

NOLLYIIdd¥ DNINNY 1d

WS

wgl

wp)|

NOILYAZ3

WooH
YWINID | WAD

| sy in

145 00D ¥ F

-t

NOILIITI3H

LEET

8 'ON

3dIS SHT NOILO3S d3S0d0Hd

JovdEaL

¥OO14|
aNNOYD!

HIMOT

NIHILEA | 31ins-N3 G WOooMd3g

JoveEL ©
HY3Y H0O0Td o
aNNOHD
i ()
NIHOLM
enmigmooy T 4 w
ONIAI
6 (ob o
_-_ - g
- v

‘FOWHEIL HY3H HOOT4 ONNOYD OL 3avHLSNTYE S50 - 01

HOOTMH LINIWNISYE 4O ININLNO -6

HSINI H30NZY Q3LNIVd -8

SHO0O DNIOTOL DNIONS O32v10 3TEN00 WNININNTY J3L4V00 930MO0d NIMOYE ATIVINEEHL - L
‘ONNOHY Sd¥D NOLLYILNIA HLIA LHDMHOO0H O3Xid NO-XMTYM - 8

DN HO MOONIM AVE 0329719 3TEN00 WNININATY J3100 H30MOd NIHOHE ATTVIWHIHL - §
Sdid NMOGO Y3 LYAWNIVE DADN - #

D HO SMCONIM NININNTY NSMOEE ATTYIWEEHL 031V00 H30MO0d - €

SNOISNILX3 SH3IWH0O 3015 M3N -2

S1HOMHO0H 3T8YNIJ0 - L

‘310N



0PI A e AR e
SYTTILODELO AL
A00 N NOINO'T “MAIA HIVAH 09

HOIANES TANLIALTHIWY TEINATHO NOISIa

SV O%

VO A NMYHA
90-Td-TTT
1401 (LFIHS SHAFWNN DMO

[EVBOOTT gorvaats avan aasodod

TIVIS AL ONIMYHA
AT SYH

NHST O HANNIE
HAATEA NATHYH 8y

JONY GNOOHD “INFWESYE 10 ONLLSTSNOD
DONITTEMA TTINEMEN JIS040HS
ANV 35N0H ONLLSINE 40 NOLLITOWA

“ATILLL LOHrodd

STHHYVd DTID

SINATTD

S INANINOD

d

sUGhIl  SNIVIS

NOLLAPSS3T AIVA ATE DT
NOLLUTOMNEC - WG
ATAENS ATENSVEN - 88
{ IVADEIY BOMd - Vd
JINAWGOTIATG OILUIWEEd - Od
LI sv- av
e i
o
gl
a4

el §
AEVNINTTTSE - SOIVIS ONIMVED
NSV 18100 AT 41

“HAHTEN DRICEHEDOEE TdO488 NOLIVIATEYID
A0S ATAIFIOTNT LOAITHIEY FHL AdLLON
SNOISNAWIC 31IS (INY SNOSNIINII NAAD
NAAMLAE SHIDNVATEISIT ANY T4 Td3HL 41

EEO00T 0 INTSNOD NALLIA,
HHL INOHLIIAN 0008438 80 X400 LON 00

dO-11l CHONTHIIE

SELS

woz

NOLLYOI'ldd¥ ONINNY1d

ARG BounETy

we| wol w wp|
NOILYAZT3 Wv3d d3S0d0ud
9 -

¢ 5 5
DY

At dinunsiy i _

i R ¥ T

il i oL

SEE Ly L3 _ -..._ | 1 m_

{ _. e | 1
A, P Lo 2 iy L | i - 7|—”— g _
Fe=—r—r——— i . _ g 7r - w_

RT THUT ER _ W - - = m _

= Ll ] L - _ ¥ - _

- HH MM G1L T ﬂr.)f—r

| . |

i 200t i GRS 8% ON _

05 "oN _ |

ABPUNOG DIUNTEY-

9t ON

‘FOVHHIL HYIH HOOTd ONNOYD OL 3avHLSMTVE SS9 - 01
TIWM LNIWISYE -6
HEINIZ §30N3H G31NiYd -8

SHO0O DNIJTO4 DNIQINS O32V10 3TEN00 WNININNTY 03L4V00 ¥30MOd N3MOYE ATTVIREEHL - L

SHO0A DNIANS O32V19 318N030 031900 H3AMOd NIHOHE ATTVNHIHL -9
DNIAOD IHOLS HLIM TIVM [3dvdvd - &

Sdid NMOGO Y3 LYWMNIVE DADM - #

D HO SMCONIM NININNTY NIMOEE ATTVINEEHL 031V00 §30MO0d - £
HSINI4 JO0H STUL NIV -2

AlvD IASMIN - L

‘S3L0N



_.E.za_q_@sw.mﬂwhw“_ﬁw NOLLYIIdd¥ DNINNY 1d

00 {N NOONOT MEIA HIVIH 09

wpz wgl wpl L wp)|
HOIANLS TANLIALTHIEY EINATIO NOISHEd.
vod AH NMVEG
S0-Td-T11
1401 L3aHS SHAFINON DM
[EV@O0OTT  wouwaam st asodond
TIVIS UL ONIMYHT
AT §YH

il NOILYAZ13 3AIS SHY a3S0dodd

HAATEA NATHYH 8y

SELS

HOOTd 151

JONY GNOOHD “INFWESYE 10 ONLLSTSNOD
DONITTEMA TTINEMEN JIS040HS

ANV FS00H ONLLSING 40 NOLLITOMEC

HTILLL EoHrodd
ShYd DTID

AINETTD

FowhyEL e (e
MY UOOW ' A »
i ONNOHD (0]
- - £ (o))
S INANINOD <
o1 8 v - - ¥ -G 9 Dl
g L
- - -
— =1 ——"1 A ~ 0SoN
A i
87 'ON
| } [4 b : £ L
d
sLiL SNIVLE
NOLLATASSAC VA ATE  OMT
ATABNS OTANSVER- B
vd
ad
- av
]
i
u
Loy ﬂ ‘FOVHHIL YY3H HOCTd ONNOYD OL 3AvHLSNIVE SSYI19 -0l
e . — HOOT ININISYE 40 ININLNRO -6
ARVNINTITSE - f S0IVIS DNLWVHT HSINIS HIONIY OILNIVG -8
NSV LHNO AT 41 AN WO HO0T IZVI0 FTENCT WNINIWATY J31V00 930MO0d NIXOEE ATVINEEHL - L
s S T R e s ‘ONNCHY S4vD NOLLYILNIA HLIM LHOMIOO0H G3xid NO-MTA -8
Eu_xouq_..__ﬁm._z:m—?.._ ik b DA HO MOONIM AVE 032919 3TN0 WRININATY 331900 H3AMOd NIHO0HE ATTVINNIHL ”m
SNOTSNAI ALIS GNY SNOISKIINGO MAAD Sdid NMOO Y3 LYAWNIVE DADN - #
NEHMLAE SAIONVITEISIA ANY TV TdIHL 4 DA HO SAMCONIAN INININNTY NSHOEE ATTVINEEHL J3Uv00 §30M0d - €
HSINIH J00dW STULNIVId -2
SE0T 0 LNISNOT NALLRM SLHDITHO0M 318VNIH0 - L
THL INOHLIS EC0EEE 90 K00 LON 00 :S310ON

)G 40 THOTHAAOD SHL STONINYHA STHL
dO-11l CHONTHIIE



WY PRO[METMAT RO TR
SPECILDORLO AL
00 {N NOONOT MEIA HIVIH 09

HOIANES TANLIALTHIWY TEINATHO NOISIa

SV o%

VO AH NMVEG
HO-Td-TTT

1401 (LITHS HAGWON DM
EV@I001:1 NYId 4008 QISoA0Ud
TIVIS UL ONIMYHT

407 SVH

NHST O HANNIE
HAATEA NATHYH 8y
SHLS

HOOTd 151

JONY GNOOHD “INFWESYE 10 ONLLSTSNOD
DONITTEMA TTINEMEN JIS040HS

ANV FS00H ONLLSING 40 NOLLITOMEC

HTILLL EoHrodd

ShYd DTID

SINATTD

SINAWINOD

d

sLiL SNIVLS

NOLLATASS3T AIVA ATE DT
NOLLUTOMNEC - WG
ATAENS ATENSVEN - 88
IVADEIY BOMd - Vd
ad
av
3
o
gl
a4

4L- 1L
AEVNINTTTSE - SOIVIS ONIMVED
NSV 18100 AT 41

AR DRICTI0HS THOJHE XOLIV ATV 1
O ATAUVIOIIINT LOAITHYEY FHL AJLLON
SNOISNIINIC LIS GNY SNOISNAINIO NEATD
NAAMLAE SHIDNVATEISIT ANY T4 Td3HL 41
S¥FOT 20 INTSN00 NALLM

L IO EIN00EITE 90 A0 LOK 00

S0 T 40 THOTHAOD HHL STONINVHO STHL

dO-11l CHONTHIIE

NOLLYOI'ldd¥ ONINNY1d

NY1d 4004 d3S0d0dd

_ _
9% "ON _ 8 'ON _
_
| |
| a __
P I
_ LHOMH00Y LHOM00Y _
v [ - I
R
m I
_ 1HOI400 g _
| )l
_ 1HON400N FHOFHEEE LHOIN00H __
. - i
| |
| | |
Ve 3
; o
_ AHOMHORY | oounmouo  [LHOMH00Y 2
| a | |l
| 2l
. LHSI400H g i
_ =]
_

0S ON

v

Page 99



Harlyn Primaf]

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2015 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

48 Harlyn Drive

Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
4956/APP/2015/3462 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
North Page 100 (December 2015

HMILLINGDON

LONDON




	Agenda
	5 82 Duck Hill Road, Northwood - 39262/APP/2014/4357
	6 Holland & Holland Shooting School, Ducks Hill Road, Northwood - 16568/APP/2015/3140
	7 48 Harlyn Drive, Pinner - 4956/APP/2015/3462
	PART I - Plans for North Planning Committee

